7th Floor, The Columbia Tower, Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City 1550 Philippines
Telephone Nos. (632) 724-44-41 10 53/ 705-52-00
www.7-eleven.com.ph

nz PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION

August 23, 2012

PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE, INC.
3" Floor, PSE PLAZA, Ayala Triangle
Ayala Avenue, Makati City

Attention: JANET A. ENCARNACION
Head, Disclosure Department

Dear Ms. Encarnacion:
Attached is the copy of the Amended Current Report SEC Form 17-C Re: Cash Dividend
Declaration submitted to Securities and Exchange Commission.

Thank you.

Very truly yours,

T%. EVELYN S. ZNRIGYEZ

Corporate Secretary
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ELEVER 7th Floor, The Columbia Tower, Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City 1550 Philippines
— Telephone Nos. (632) 724-44-41 to 53/ 705-52-00
www.7-eleven.com.ph

August 23, 2012

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Building, Edsa
Mandaluyong City

Attention : CORPORATION FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Subject : AMENDED SEC FORM 17-C RE: CASH DIVIDEND DECLARATION

Dear Sir;

This refers to Philippine Seven Corporation (PSC) SEC FORM 17-C Increase in
Authorized Capital Stock and Dividend Declarations submitted to Securities and
Exchange Commission last July 25, 2012. In connection with our disclosure on Cash
Dividend ltem 9(3) of the said report, we are submitting additional documents providing
certification on certain information as of Record Date of August 22, 2012.

In view of the above, we are submitiing the Amended SEC Form 17-C regarding Cash
Dividend Declaration with the following additional documents:

1. Certification by the Corporate Secretary on the board resolution approving the cash
dividend declaration;

2. Certification by the Corporate Secretary on the Total Outstanding Capital Stock of the
Corporation as of Record Date, and Total Amount of Cash Dividend for Distribution;
and

3. Copy of the Audited Financial Statements as of the last year, stamped received by
SEC and BIR and used as basis for the cash dividend declaration (with reconciliation
of retained earnings).

Thank you.
Very truly yours,

ai[“’ﬁ
JUE;ET E A. JAVIER
Compliance Supervisor

Noted

ATTY. EVELYN S. ENRIQUEZ

Corporate Secretary
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-C
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.2 (c) THEREUNDER

1. Date of Report : August 23, 2012

2. SEC ldentification Number : 108476

3. BIR Tax Identification No. : 000-390-189-000

4. Exact Name of Issuer as specified in its charter : Philippine Seven Corporation

5. Province, Country or other jurisdiction : PHILIPPINES

6. Industry Classification Code: (SEC Use only)

7. Address of principal office : 7" Floor, The Columbia Tower
Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong
City 1501

8. lIssuer’'s Telephone number, including area code : (632) 724-4441 to 51

9. Former name of former address, if changed since
last report : n/a

10. Securities Registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC or Sections 4 and 8
Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Outstanding
Shares Outstanding — Common 346,642,966
Units — Warrants 0

11. Indicate the item number reported herein :

Item 9. Other Events



Item 9. Other Events

The Board of Directors of PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION, in its Special Meeting of
July 24, 2012 held at Boardroom 1 5/F, Business Center Oakwood Premier Joy-Nostalg
Center Manila, Topaz Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City, there being a quorum, the Board of
Directors during said meeting has approved a Cash dividend declaration of Ten Centavos
(Php0.10) per share. The record date for entittement to said cash dividend shall be on
August 22, 2012 and the payment date shall be on September 14, 2012:

In compliance with the requirements of the Commission, attached herewith are the
following documents:

1. Certification by the Corporate Secretary on the board resolution approving the cash
dividend declaration;

2. Certification by the Corporate Secretary on the Total Outstanding Capital Stock of the
Corporation as of record date, and Total Amount of Cash Dividend for Distribution; and

3. Copy of the Audited Financial Statements as of the last year, stamped received by SEC
and BIR and used as basis for the cash dividend declaration (with reconciliation of

retained earnings).

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned duly authorized for the
purpose.

PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION

ATTY. EVELYN S. ENRIQWEZ

Corporate Secretary

By:
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SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE N

I, EVELYN S. ENRIQUEZ, Filipino, of legal age, with office address at the 7"
#loor, The Columbia Tower, Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City, having been duly sworn
¥ accordance with law, hereby depose and certify that:

1. I'am the Corporate Secretary of PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION (the
“Corporation”), a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the law
of the Republic of the Philippines, with principal office address at the 7" Floor, The
Columbia Tower, Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City, Philippines;

2. As such Corporate Secretary, | have custody of the pertinent books and
records of the Corporation;

3. According to said records, at the special meeting of the Board of Directors
of the Corporation held at Boardroom 1, 5/F, Business Center Oakwood Premier Joy-
Nostalg Center Manila, Topaz Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City, on 24 July 2012, at
which meeting a quorum was present and voting throughout, the following resolutions
were approved and adopted:

“RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of Philippine Seven
Corporation (the “Corporation”) hereby approve the declaration of cash
dividend in the amount of Ten Centavos (P0.10) per share on the
outstanding capital stock of the Corporation of 346,642,966 shares or
equivalent to Php 34,664,297. The record date for entitlement to said
cash dividend shall be on August 22, 2012, which is not more than 30
days from the declaration and the payment date shall be on September
14, 2012, which is not later than 18 trading days from record date.”

“RESOLVED, ALSO, that for purposes of payment of the Cash
Dividends, Banco De Oro Unibank, Inc. - Trust and Investments Group,
the authorized transfer agent of the Corporation, through the following
Officers signing jointly, be authorized to prepare, sign, issue and mail the
cash dividend checks to stockholders entitled to receive the same in the
amounts due them based on the above-mentioned declaration, less any
applicable tax, which checks shall be drawn from the bank account of the
Corporation opened and maintained for the said purpose:

ADORA A. YANGA - Vice President
CARLA B. SALONGA - Asst. Vice President

“RESOLVED, FINALLY, that any one of the Chairman of the Board,
President, Treasurer or Corporate Secretary is hereby authorized to file the
necessary petition and other requisite documents and papers to secure
approvals from the appropriate government agencies and other entities to
implement the foregoing resolution.”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand tﬁis’ ___ day of
2012 at Mandalyyong-€ity.,

-

: VELYN S. ENRIQUEZ
Corporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN, to _before me _this day of

o W
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SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

I. EVELYN S. ENRIQUEZ, Filipino, of legal age, with office address at the 7
or. The Columbia Tower, Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City, having been duly sworn
) @ccordance with law, hereby depose and certify that:

1. | am the Corporate Secretary of PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION (the
“Corporation”), a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the law
of the Republic of the Philippines, with principal office address at the 7" Floor, The
Columbia Tower, Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City, Philippines;

2.  As such Corporate Secretary, | have custody of the pertinent books and
records of the Corporation;

3. According to said records, on 24 July 2012, the Board of Directors of the
Corporation has declared Cash Dividend of Ten Centavos (Php0.10) per share for
346,642,966 outstanding capital stock of the Corporation.

4. As per the Corporation’s Stock Transfer Agency, as of record date of

August 22, 2012, the total outstanding capital stock of the Corporation is still
346,642,966. .

As such, the total amount of Cash Dividend for distribution is Php 34,664,297.

9 |
x

day of -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand ‘this”
2012 at onsIs CIEN. -
ﬂ%l/mv
EVELYN S. ENW
Corporate Secretary
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN, to@ pefore .me,, this day of
: at PRSI AT Philippines,
affiants exhibited to me her her SSS ID No. 0372848505.
NOTARY PUBLIC
p
JE——
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/ SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
6760 Ayala Avenue

1226 Makati City

H”'HHH”H = Philippines
‘ ‘ ‘ H H || || SGV& CO Phone: (632) 891 0307

- Fax: (632) 819 0872
Ell ERNST & YOUNG www.sgv.com.ph

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001,
January 25, 2010, valid until December 31, 2012
SEC Accreditation No. 0012-FR-2 (Group A),
February 4, 2010, valid until February 3, 2013

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Philippine Seven Corporation

7th Floor, The Columbia Tower

Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated dinhstatements of Philippine Seven Corporation
and Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidatddnize sheets as at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
and the consolidated statements of comprehensis@mia, statements of changes in equity and
statements of cash flows for each of the threesygathe period ended December 31, 2011, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and o#aglanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the ConsolidatechBncial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation airdpfesentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine FinarRigborting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enalpesiheration of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whethertd fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance Witlippine Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical resjoents and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolifiaiztcial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaiditievidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The gulaces selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of materiastatement of the consolidated financial statement
whether due to fraud or error. In making thosk a@ssessments, the auditor considers internalaontr
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair pnéation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are apptepinathe circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of thiéyés internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting @sliaised and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaludwingverall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a bagis f
our audit opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetsepresent fairly, in all material respecthe
financial position of Philippine Seven Corporatemd Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
and their financial performance and their cash fidar each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2011 in accordance with Philippinefonl Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

?@mo.m

Julie Christine O. Mateo

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 93542

SEC Accreditation No. 0780-AR-1 (Group A),
February 2, 2012, valid until February 1, 2015

Tax Identification No. 198-819-116

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-68-2009,
June 1, 2009, valid until May 31, 2012

PTR No. 3174818, January 2, 2012, Makati City

February 10, 2012



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION

Lot Bsvmts 1w st Kavinngde by sop

SEC-HRAD/

APR 03 202

PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS o i e
B e
;Zecember 31

2011! 2010
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) £363,051,527 £307,170,971
Receivables (Notes S and 24) 236,631,452 158,789,320
Inventories (Note 6) 519,258,936 402,419,577
Prepayments and other current assets (Note 7) 151,806,950 135,257,238
Total Current Assets 1,270,748,865 1,003,637,106
Noncurrent Assets
Investment in shares of stock of subsidiaries (Note 8) 87,741,864 87,741,864
Property and equipment (Note 9) 1,860,178,046 1,535,727,430
Deposits (Note 10) 207,796,362 180,610,820
Deferred income tax assets - net (Note 26) 33,794,786 34,809,401
Goodwill and other noncurrent assets (Note 11) 193,536,375 190,632,269
Total Noncurrent Assets 2,383,047,433 2,029,521,784
TOTAL ASSETS £3,653,796,298 £3,033,158,890
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Bank loans (Note 12) £374,0660,667 £320,000,000
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Notes 13 and 25) 1,221,955,444 1,057,607,237
Income tax payable 71,367,902 42,756,315
Other current liabilities (Note 14) 314,687,360 279,938,814
Total Current Liabilities 1,982,677,373 1,700,302,366
Noncurrent Liabilities
Deposits payable (Note 15) 171,457,833 142,862,137
Net retirement obligations (Note 23) 58,088,607 51,809,637
Deferred revenue - net of current portion (Note 16) 4,057,482 7,000,300
Total Noncurrent Liabilifies o 234,203,922 201,672,074

Total Liabilities

T s

16,881;295 -

1,901,974,440

Equity
Capital stock (Note 17) - £1 par value

Authorized - 400,000,000 shares g 1
lssued - 347,329,216 and 302,114,918 shares as df vy %

December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively

(held by 666 and 684 equity holders in 2011 =’

-
-
il
-

|
]
|

and 2010, respectively (Note 1)] 2 P302,114,918
Additional paid-in capital 293,525,037 293,525,037
Retained earnings (Note 17) 798,983,996 538,467,741
1,439,838,249 1,134,107,696
Cost of 686,250 shares held in {reasury (2,923,2406) (2,923,246)
Total Equity 1,436,915,003 1,131,184,450
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P3,653,796,298 £3,033,158,890

See accompanying Notes to Parent Company Financial Statements.

il
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PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2011

2010

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4)
Short-term investment (Note 4)

Receivables (Note 5)

Inventories (Note 6)

Prepayments and other current assets (Note 7)

P394,696,749
10,409,907
239,289,287
519,258,936
161,522,138

B358,729,534
10,141,555
158,342,635
402,419,577
139,607,097

Total Current Assets

1,325,177,017

1,069,240,398

Noncurrent Assets

Property and equipment (Note 8)

Deposits (Note 9)

Deferred income tax assets - net (Note 27)
Goodwill and other noncurrent assets (Note 10)

1,946,032,976
215,964,826
40,662,817
206,461,345

1,607,296,761
181,196,390
40,827,991
194,611,819

Total Noncurrent Assets

2,409,121,964

2,023,932,961

TOTAL ASSETS

P3,734,298,981

P3,093,173,359

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Bank loans (Note 11)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 12)
Income tax payable

Other current liabilities (Notes 13 and 25)

P374,666,667
1,243,937,457
73,922,196
298,435,516

P320,000,000
1,078,339,407
45,289,647
265,799,298

Total Current Liabilities

1,990,961,836

1,709,428,352

Noncurrent Liabilities

Deposits payable (Note 14) 171,457,833 142,862,137
Net retirement obligations (Note 24) 65,192,720 57,453,582
Cumulative redeemable preferred shares (Note 15) 6,000,000 6,000,000
Deferred revenue - net of current portion (Note 16) 4,057,482 7,000,300
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 246,708,035 213,316,019

Total Liabilities

2,237,669,871

1,922,744,371

Equity
Capital stock (Note 17) - B1 par value
Authorized - 400,000,000 shares

Issued - 347,329,216 and 302,114,918 shares as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively
[held by 666 and 684 equity holders in 2011

and 2010, respectively (Note 1)] 347,329,216 302,114,918

Additional paid-in capital 293,525,037 293,525,037

Retained earnings (Note 17) 855,468,208 574,482,384
Revaluation increment on land [net of deferred medax liability

(Notes 8 and 27)] 3,229,895 3,229,895

1,499,552,356 1,173,352,234

Cost of 686,250 shares held in treasury (2,923,246) (2,923,246)

Total Equity

1,496,629,110

1,170,428,988

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

P3,734,298,981

P3,093,173,359

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ents.



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2011

2010

2009

REVENUES

Revenue from merchandise sales B9,435,604,073

Franchise revenue (Note 32) 534,025,712
Marketing income (Note 20) 486,823,340
Rental income (Note 26) 44,143,593
Commission income (Note 32) 37,236,539
Interest income (Notes 4, 9, 22 and 26) 5,864,713
Other income (Notes 5, 26 and 32) 99,300,756

R7,612,243,056
442,822,680
344,241,651

37,361,844
29,271,506

5,355,769
72,802,078

P6,033,322,488

303,815,142
237,618,931
52,265,323
22,130,513
4,839,945
34,569,831

10,642,998,726

8,544,098,584

6,688,562,173

EXPENSES
Cost of merchandise sales (Note 18)
General and administrative expenses (Note 19)

7,091,496,699
3,012,177,978

Interest expense (Notes 11, 15 and 21) 16,024,647
Loss from typhoon (Note 8) -
Other expenses 4,806,251

5,585,270,478
2,531,390,104
16,398,169

5,403,913

4,371,715,990
2,050,959,329
26,482,817
3,285,171
5,287,817

10,124,505,575

8,138,462,664

6,457,731,124

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 518,493,151 405,635,920 230,831,049
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 27) 162,150,162 128,755,672 75,040,398
NET INCOME 356,342,989 276,880,248 155,790,651

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P356,342,989

P276,880,248

P155,790,651

BASIC/DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

(Note 28) P1.03

P0.80

P0.45

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ents.



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 and 23D

Capital Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Revaluation
Increment on

Land (Note 8) Total

Treasury

Stock Total

BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2008

P261,663,450

P293,525,037

P196,616,699

P3,229,8 B755,035,081

(R2,923,246) R752,111,835

Stock dividends (Note 17) 26,097,722 - (26,097,722) - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year — — 155,790,651 - 155,790,651 — 155,790,651
BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 287,761,172 293,525,037 326,309,628 3,229,895 95(¥82 (2,923,246) 907,902,486
Stock dividends (Note 17) 14,353,746 - (14,353,746) - - - -
Cash dividends (Note 17) - —  (14,353,746) —  (14,353,746) - (14,353,746)
Total comprehensive income for the year — — 276,880,248 - 276,880,248 - 276,880,248
BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 302,114,918 293,525,037 574,482,384 3,229,895 1,173,352,234 (2,923,246) 1,170,428,988
Stock dividends (Note 17) 45,214,298 - (45,214,298) - - - -

Cash dividends (Note 17)
Total comprehensive income for the year

(30,142,867)
356,342,989

—  (30,142,867)
— 356,342,089

—  (30,142,867)
— 356,342,989

BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011

P347,329,216

P293,525,03855,468,208

P3,229,895 P1,499,552,356

(B2,923,246) P1,4856.0

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiéstents.



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2011

2010

2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization

B518,493,151

P405,635,920

P230,831,049

(Notes 8 and 19) 378,355,521 291,803,754 203,905,718
Interest expense (Notes 11, 15, and 21) 16,024,647 16,398,169 26,482,817
Net retirement obligations (Note 24) 7,739,138 1,786,458 19,839,386
Interest income (Notes 4, 9, 22 and 26) (5,864,713) (5,355,769) (4,839,945)
Amortization of:
Deferred lease (Notes 10 and 26) 2,779,684 1,414,700 1,475,524
Software and other program costs
(Notes 10 and 19) 2,598,741 3,089,728 3,053,728
Deferred revenue on exclusivity
contract (Note 16) (1,934,524) (5,476,190) (3,913,691)
Deferred revenue on finance lease
(Notes 16 and 26) (589,567) (709,665) (1,310,151)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) (49,798) 378,900 485,170
Loss from/on:
Retirement of property and equipment - 67,751 -
Typhoon (Note 8) - - 3,285,171
Operating income before working capital changes 917,552,280 709,033,756 479,294,776
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (78,072,578) 14,301,014 11,444,710
Inventories (116,839,359) 13,233,094 (76,096,286)

Prepayments and other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:

(32,811,310)

(58,286,054)

(56,529,837)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 165,298,414 50,754,902 180,337,730
Other current liabilities 32,636,218 21,551,666 31,737,028
Deposits payable 28,595,696 22,895,083 36,714,408
Deferred revenue (Notes 16 and 32) (418,727) 5,133,336 —
Cash generated from operations 915,940,634 778,616,797 606,902,529
Income taxes paid (133,352,439) (118,023,813) (68,854,934)
Interest received 2,933,116 3,711,520 3,138,083
Net cash generated from operating activities 785,521,311 664,304,504 541,185,678

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Additions to:
Property and equipment (Note 8)
Software and other program costs (Note 10)
Decrease (increase) in;
Deposits

(717,091,736)

(34,768,436)

Goodwill and other noncurrent assets (7,922,962)
Acquisition of short-term investments (10,409,907)
Proceeds from maturity of short-term investments 10,141,555
Collection of lease receivable (Note 26) 1,591,280

(671,923,830)
(161,900)

(28,984,235)
6,339,916
(10,141,555)

1,775,466

(362,393,990)
(286,000)

(17,644,957)
(11,952,821)

2,782,500

Net cash used in investing activities (758,460,206)

(703,096,138)

(389,495,268)

(Forward)



Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Availments of bank loans (Note 11) P230,000,000 2290,000,000 B510,000,000
Payments of bank loans (Note 11) (175,333,333) (310,000,000) (500,000,000)
Interest paid (15,725,011) (16,577,074) (27,254,709)
Cash dividends paid (30,142,867) (14,353,746)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 8,798,789

(50,930,820)

(17,254,709)

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 107,321 (378,900) (485,170)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 35,967,215 (90,101,354) 133,950,531
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 358,729,534 448,830,888 314,880,357

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR P394,696,749

P358,729,534

P448,830,888

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ents.



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Corporate Information and Authorization for Issuance of Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Philippine Seven Corporation (the Company or P%@3 incorporated in the Philippines and
registered with the Philippine Securites and Exgea Commission (SEC) on
November 29, 1982. The Company and its subsidigdellectively referred to as “the Group”),
are primarily engaged in the business of retailimgrchandising, buying, selling, marketing,
importing, exporting, franchising, acquiring, haidi distributing, warehousing, trading,
exchanging or otherwise dealing in all kinds of gy items, dry goods, food or foodstuffs,
beverages, drinks and all kinds of consumer needequirements and in connection therewith,
operating or maintaining warehouses, storages/atglvehicles and similar or incidental facilities.
The Group is also engaged in the management, gevelat, sale, exchange, and holding for
investment or otherwise of real estate of all kjridsluding buildings, houses and apartments and
other structures.

The Company is controlled by President Chain Stbabuan) Holdings, Ltd., an investment
holding company incorporated in Malaysia, which ews6.59% of the Company’s outstanding
shares. The remaining 43.41% of the shares arglyneld. The ultimate parent of the Company
is President Chain Store Corporation (PCSC), whidhcorporated in Taiwan, Republic of China.

The Company has its primary listing on the Philigp5tock Exchange. As of December 31, 2011
and 2010, the Company has 666 and 684 equity Isldespectively.

The registered business address of the Comparyhid-loor, The Columbia Tower, Ortigas
Avenue, Mandaluyong City.

Authorization for Issuance of the Financial Statetee

The consolidated financial statements as of Dece®be?2011 and 2010 and for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2011 wehem@zed for issue by the Board of Directors
(BOD) on February 10, 2012.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Finacial Reporting Practices

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepareter the historical cost basis, except for
parcels of land, which are carried at revalued arhohe consolidated financial statements are
presented in Philippine Peso (Peso), which is trau@s functional currency and all amounts are
rounded to the nearest Peso except when othemdsmted.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements, which aepgred for submission to the SEC, are prepared
in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting&dards (PFRS).

Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent thidke of the previous financial year except for
the following new and amended PFRS, Philippine Actimg Standards (PAS) and Philippine
Interpretations based on International Financiapdréng Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)




interpretations, which became effective on Jandarg011. Except as otherwise indicated, the
adoption of the new and amended Standards angtatations, did not have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to PAS 2&elated Party Disclosures

This Amendment clarifies the definition of a rethfgarty. The new definitions emphasize a
symmetrical view of related party relationships atatify the circumstances in which persons
and key management personnel affect related peletionships of an entity.

In addition, the amendment introduces an exemgtmm the general related party disclosure
requirements for transactions with government antities that are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the sagm/ernment as the reporting entity.

Amendment to PAS 3ZEinancial Instruments: Presentation - Classificatiof Rights Issues
This Amendment alters the definition of a finandiability in order to classify rights issues
(and certain options or warrants) as equity inseunt® in cases where such rights are given
pro rata to all of the existing owners of the sasfess of an entity’s non-derivative equity
instruments, in order to acquire a fixed numbethef entity’s own equity instruments for a
fixed amount in any currency.

Amendment to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC Bfepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

This Amendment removes an unintended consequener a entity is subject to minimum
funding requirements and makes an early paymetomtfibutions to cover such requirements.
The amendment permits a prepayment of future sepost by the entity to be recognized as a
pension asset. The Group is not subject to minirfuding requirements in the Philippines,
therefore the amendment of the interpretation haseffect on the financial position nor
performance of the Group.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 1€xtinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity

Instruments

This Interpretation clarifies that equity instrurterissued to a creditor to extinguish a
financial liability qualify as consideration paid.he equity instruments issued are measured at
their fair value. In case that this cannot beat#li measured, the instruments are measured at
the fair value of the liability extinguished. Amain or loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

Improvements to PFRSs

The omnibus amendments to PFRSs issued in May @10 issued primarily with a view to
removing inconsistencies and clarifying wordingheifle are separate transitional provisions for
each standard. Except otherwise stated, the aoptithese amendments did not have significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to PFRS Business Combinations (Revised)

This Amendment clarifies that the Amendments to 8FR, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures PAS 32 and PAS 3%inancial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
(Amendment) - Eligible Hedged Itentbat eliminate the exemption for contingent
consideration, do not apply to contingent consiti@nathat arose from business combinations
whose acquisition dates precede the applicatid?F&IS 3 (as revised in 2008).

The measurement options available for non-contlinterest (NCI) were amended. Only
components of NCI that constitute a present owngrisiterest that entitles their holder to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assethénetvent of liquidation should be measured at
either fair value or at the present ownership umagnts’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s



identifiable net assets. All other componentstarbe measured at their acquisition date fair
value.

Amendment to PFRS Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This Amendment was intended to simplify the disates provided by reducing the volume of
disclosures around collateral held and improvingcldisures by requiring qualitative
information to put the quantitative informationdantext.

Amendment to PAS Rresentation of Financial Statements

This Amendment clarifies that an entity will presean analysis of other comprehensive
income (OCI) for each component of equity, eitlmethie statement of changes in equity or in
the notes to the financial statements.

Amendment to PAS 2TConsolidated and Separate Financial Statements

This Amendment clarifies that the consequential raineents from PAS 27 made to PAS 21,
The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange RafeAS 28,Investments in Associatesd
PAS 31,Interests in Joint Venturesipply prospectively for annual periods beginnimgor
after July 1, 2009 or earlier when PAS 27 is agbéarlier.

Amendment to PAS 34nterim Financial Reporting

This Amendment provides guidance to illustrate tiowpply disclosure principles in PAS 34

and add disclosure requirements around:

a) The circumstances likely to affect fair values ahahcial instruments and their
classification;

b) Transfers of financial instruments between diffeéfenels of the fair value hierarchy;

¢) Changes in classification of financial assets; and

d) Changes in contingent liabilities and assets.

Amendment to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC £3jstomer Loyalty Programmes

This Amendment clarifies that when the fair valdieward credits is measured based on the
value of the awards for which they could be redekrtiee amount of discounts or incentives

otherwise granted to customers not participatindpéraward credit scheme, is to be taken into
account.

New Accounting Standards, Interpretations, and Adngmnts to
Existing Standards Effective Subsequent to DecerbeP011

The Group will adopt the following standards, iptetations and amendments to existing
standards enumerated below when these becomeieffedExcept as otherwise indicated, the
Group does not expect the adoption of these stdadmterpretations and amendments to existing
standards to have a significant impact on the datated financial statements.

Effective in 2012

Amendments to PAS Einancial Statement Presentation, Presentatiorterhk of Other
Comprehensive Income

This Amendment changed the grouping of items ptesem OCI. Items that could be
reclassified (or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss atfature point in time (for example, upon
derecognition or settlement) would be presentedirsggly from items that will never be
reclassified. The amendment affects presentatidyg and will have no impact on the
Group’s financial position or performance.

Amendment to PFRS Fjnancial Instruments: Disclosures - Enhanced Deggttion

Disclosure Requirements

The Amendments to PFRS 7 are effective for annwaiogs beginning on or after
July 1, 2011. The amendments require additiorsdlasure about financial assets that have
been transferred but not derecognized to enablagheof the entity’s financial statements to



understand the relationship with those assets liage not been derecognized and their
associated liabilities. In addition, the amendmeerdgquire disclosures about continuing
involvement in derecognized assets to enable tee tasevaluate the nature of, and risks
associated with, the entity’s continuing involvermignthose derecognized assets.

Amendment to PAS 12ncome TaxedDeferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
This Amendment to PAS 12 is effective for annualiqus beginning on or after
January 1, 2012. The amendment clarified the ohitbetion of deferred tax on investment
property measured at fair value. The amendmenbtdotes a rebuttable presumption that
deferred tax on investment property measured usiieg fair value model in PAS 40,
Investment Propertyshould be determined on the basis that its cagrgimount will be
recovered through sale. Furthermore, it introdubesrequirement that deferred tax on non-
depreciable assets that are measured using théuatwa model in PAS 16 always be
measured on a sale basis of the asset.

Effective 2013

Amendment to PFRS Fjinancial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial étssand
Financial Liabilities

The Amendments to PFRS 7 are to be retrospectamhlied for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2013. These Amendments reaqmirentity to disclose information about
rights of set-off and related arrangements (suchcaltateral agreements). The new
disclosures are required for all recognized finahicistruments that are set off in accordance
with PAS 32. These disclosures also apply to reizegl financial instruments that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement avilasi agreement’, irrespective of whether
they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32. Theraments require entities to disclose, in a
tabular format unless another format is more apyait® the following minimum quantitative
information. This is presented separately for ritial assets and financial liabilities
recognized at the end of the reporting period:

a) The gross amounts of those recognized financiatsissd recognized financial liabilities;
b) The amounts that are set off in accordance witttiieria in PAS 32 when determining
the net amounts presented in the statement ofdialgposition;
c) The net amounts presented in the statement ofdialgmosition;
d) The amounts subject to an enforceable master gettiangement or similar agreement
that are not otherwise included in (b) above, idirig:
i. Amounts related to recognized financial instrumehdd do not meet some or all of
the offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
ii. Amounts related to financial collateral (includicash collateral); and
e) The net amount after deducting the amounts inr¢ah the amounts in (c) abo ve.



The amendment affects disclosures only and haspadt on the Group’s financial position
or performance.

PFRS 10Consolidated Financial Statements

This Standard becomes effective for annual permtsinning on or after January 1, 2013.
PFRS 10 replaces the portion of PAS 27 that adesefise accounting for consolidated
financial statements. It also includes the isgaésed in Standing Interpretations Committee
(SIC)-12,Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities

PFRS 10 establishes a single control model thatiemppo all entities including special
purpose entities. The changes introduced by PRR@ill require management to exercise
significant judgment to determine which entities aontrolled, and therefore, are required to
be consolidated by a parent, compared with theirements that were in PAS 27. The Group
is currently assessing the full impact that thamdard will have on the financial position and
performance.

PFRS 11Joint Arrangements

This Standard becomes effective for annual perdgnning on or after January 1, 2013. It
replaces PAS 3linterests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly-calfed Entities - Non-
monetary Contributions by Venturersit also removes the option to account for jgintl
controlled entities (JCEs) using proportionate otidation. Instead, JCEs that meet the
definition of a joint venture must be accountedusing the equity method.

PFRS 12Disclosure of Interest with Other Entities

This Standard becomes effective for annual perogignning on or after January 1, 2013. It
includes all of the disclosures that were previpuslPAS 27 related to consolidated financial

statements, as well as all of the disclosures weat previously included in PAS 31 and

PAS 28. These disclosures relate to an entityesréists in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and structured entities. A numberwfdisclosures are also required.

PFRS 13Fair Value Measurement

This Standard becomes effective for annual perogdgnning on or after January 1, 2013. It
establishes a single source of guidance under R&R&I fair value measurements. It does
not change when an entity is required to use faine; but rather provides guidance on how to
measure fair value under PFRS when fair value dgiired or permitted. The Group is
currently assessing the impact that this standatidhave on the financial position and
performance.

Amendment to PAS 1Employee Benefits
This Amendment becomes effective for annual periainning on or after January 1, 2013.
The Amendment provides changes which range frorddomental changes such as removing
the corridor mechanism and the concept of expecttdrns on plan assets to simple
clarifications and re-wording. The Group is cuthgrassessing the full impact of the
amendments.

Amendment to PAS 2Beparate Financial Statements (Revised)

This Amendment becomes effective for annual pertmtgnning on or after January 1, 2013.
As a consequence of the new PFRS 10 and PFRS B2,rerinains of PAS 27 is limited to
accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled iéas, and associates in separate financial
statements.



Amendment to PAS 28nvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures (B#vis

This Amendment becomes effective for annual perimainning on or after January 1, 2013.
As a consequence of the new PFRS 11 and PFRS 12,2BMas been renamed PAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventueasl describes the application of the equity
method to investments in joint ventures in additimassociates.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 2@&tripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Swrfisiine
This interpretation becomes effective for annualqus beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
This interpretation applies to waste removal ctisés are incurred in surface mining activity
during the production phase of the mine (“produtstripping costs”) and provides guidance
on the recognition of production stripping costsaasasset and measurement of the stripping
activity asset. This interpretation will have magpiact on the Group’s financial statements.

Effective 2014

Amendments to PAS 38ffsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabéi

These Amendments are to be retrospectively apfidiednnual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2014. It clarifies the meaning of “ently has a legally enforceable right to set-
off” and also clarify the application of the PAS 8f#setting criteria to settlement systems
(such as central clearing house systems) whictyappks settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. The Group is currently assessingipact of these amendments.

Effective 2015

PFRS 9Financial Instruments: Classification and Measur&me

This Standard becomes effective for annual perlEtsinning on or after January 1, 2015.
The Standard, as issued in 2010, reflects thefirase of the work on the replacement of PAS
39 and applies to classification and measuremefibaiicial assets and financial liabilities as
defined in PAS 39. In subsequent phases, hedgeumiticg and impairment of financial
assets will be addressed with the completion a&f pndject expected on the first half of 2012.
The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will hare effect on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets, bl patentially have no impact on
classification and measurements of financial liab8. The Group will quantify the effect in
conjunction with the other phases, when issuefdrésent a comprehensive picture.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 1B\greements for the Construction of Real Estate

The SEC and the Financial Reporting Standards Globace deferred the effectivity of this
interpretation until the final Revenue standaridssied by International Accounting Standards
Board and an evaluation of the requirements of fthal Revenue standard against the
practices of the Philippine real estate industryc@npleted. This interpretation covers
accounting for revenue and associated expensestitg® that undertake the construction of
real estate directly or through subcontractors. Triterpretation requires that revenue on
construction of real estate be recognized only upampletion, except when such contract
qualifies as construction contract to be accoufdedinder PAS 11Construction Contracts

or involves rendering of services in which caseenmee is recognized based on stage of
completion. Contracts involving provision of seescwith the construction materials and
where the risks and reward of ownership are traregfe¢o the buyer on a continuous basis will
also be accounted for based on stage of complefldnis interpretation will have no impact
on the Group’s financial statements.



Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include ttepbants of the Company and the following
subsidiaries:

Country of  Percentage of

Incorporation Ownership
Convenience Distribution, Inc. (CDI) Philippines a0
Store Sites Holding, Inc. (SSHI) Philippines 100

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Comgeas an interest of more than one half of the
voting rights or otherwise has power to govern fimancial and operating policies through
interlocking directorships such that substantiaidsiés from the subsidiaries’ activities flow taeth
Company. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated ftbendate on which control is transferred to the
Company. They are de-consolidated from the datevbith control ceases. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the geaincluded in profit or loss from the date of
acquisition or up to the date of the disposal, s @priate.

SSHI's capital stock, which is divided into 40% aoon shares and 60% preferred shares are
owned by the Company and by Philippine Seven Catmn-Employees Retirement Plan
(PSC-ERP) through its trustee, Bank of the Philippi Islands-Asset Management and Trust
Group (BPI-AMTG), respectively. These preferrecarels which accrue and pay guaranteed
preferred dividends and are redeemable at theropfidhe holder are recognized as a financial
liability in accordance with PFRS (see Note 15heTompany owns 100% of SSHI's common
shares, which, together with common key managemgergs the Company control over SSHI.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries aepamed for the same reporting year as the
Company, using uniform accounting policies. Intenpany transactions, balances and unrealized
gains and losses are eliminated in full.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash adepiis are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to knowmants of cash with original maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition antldha subject to an insignificant change in value.

Financial Instruments
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a firgrigbility in the consolidated balance sheet
when it becomes a party to the contractual prongsiaf the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are gFgped initially at fair value. Transaction coate
included in the initial measurement of all finaricéssets and financial liabilities, except for
financial instruments measured at fair value thropigpfit or loss (FVPL).

All regular way purchases and sales of financiaetsare recognized on the trade date, i.e. the
date the Group commits to purchase or sell thenfiizh asset. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets require delivery of assets withintime frame generally established by regulation
in the market place.



The Group classifies its financial assets as firdngssets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM)
financial assets, available-for-sale financial (AFR&sets or loans and receivables. Financial
liabilities, on the other hand, are classified ifisee financial liabilities at FVPL or other finaiat
liabilities. The classification depends on thepmse for which the financial assets and financial
liabilities were acquired. Management determines c¢lassification at initial recognition and,
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates trsgdation at every balance sheet date.

Financial Assets

a. Financial Assets at FVPL
Financial assets at FVPL include financial assetd-for-trading and those designated upon
initial recognition as at FVPL.

Financial assets are classified as held-for-traditigey are acquired for the purpose of selling
in the near term.

Financial assets are designated as at FVPL omlingcognition when any of the following
criteria are met:

» the designation eliminates or significantly redudi®s inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or réziogngains or losses on them on a
different basis; or

« the assets are part of a group of financial asgkitsh are managed and their performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordanitie avdocumented risk management or
investment strategy; or

» the financial asset contains an embedded derivaiiviess the embedded derivative does
not significantly modify the cash flows or it isedr, with little or no analysis, that it would
not be separately recorded.

Financial assets at FVPL are recorded in the cafeel balance sheet at fair value. Changes
in fair value are accounted for directly in prafitloss. Interest earned is recorded as interest
income, while dividend income is recognized acawgydio the terms of the contract, or when
the right of the payment has been established.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group hdmancial assets at FVPL.

The Group assesses whether embedded derivativesaaiieed to be separated from the host
contracts when the Group first becomes a partidéocontract. Re-assessment only occurs if
there is a change in the terms of the contract glwatificantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required.

An embedded derivative is separated from the hoané&ial or non-financial asset contract
and accounted for as a derivative if all of thédwing conditions are met:

» the economic characteristics and risks of the eabetdierivative are not closely related
to the economic characteristic of the host contract

* a separate instrument with the same terms as theddad derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and

. the hybrid or combined instrument is not recogniasdrVPL.



Embedded derivatives that are bifurcated from th&t hontracts are accounted for as financial
assets at FVPL. Changes in fair values are indlud@rofit or loss.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group hamutstanding embedded derivatives.

b. HTM Financial Assets
HTM financial assets are quoted non-derivative Hial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities wherein the Grouptheapositive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. HTM financial assets are subsequetdlyied either at cost or amortized cost in
the consolidated balance sheet. Amortization ferdeéned by using the effective interest rate
method. Assets under this category are classd®durrent assets if maturity is within
12 months from balance sheet date. Otherwisee thesclassified as noncurrent assets.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group hadewitjnated any financial asset as HTM.

c. AFS Financial Assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivative finaneissets that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other gatees. Financial assets may be designated at
initial recognition as AFS if they are purchased dreld indefinitely, and may be sold in
response to liquidity requirements or changes irkaetaconditions. AFS financial assets are
carried at fair value in the consolidated balaffmes Changes in the fair value of such assets
are accounted for in the consolidated statemerbofprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognized or until the financial aisseetermined to be impaired at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously reported in tomsolidated statement of comprehensive
income is recognized in profit or loss. AFS finmh@assets are classified as current assets if
maturity is within 12 months from balance sheetedaOtherwise, these are classified as
noncurrent assets.

The Group’s AFS financial assets consist of unglioteestments in preferred shares of a
public utility company included as part of “Othenghder “Goodwill and other noncurrent
assets” in the consolidated balance sheets asaanilzer 31, 2011 and 2010.

d. Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Loansraodivables are subsequently carried either
at cost or amortized cost in the consolidated lu@ameet. Amortization is determined using
the effective interest rate method. Loans andivabkes are classified as current assets if
maturity is within 12 months from balance sheetedaOtherwise, these are classified as
noncurrent assets.

The Group’s loans and receivables consist of castt @ash equivalents, short-term
investments, receivables and deposits as of Deae3ib@011 and 2010.

Financial Liabilities

a. Financial Liabilities at FVPL
Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial bdities held-for-trading and those designated
upon recognition at FVPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held-faading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term.



Financial liabilities are designated as at FVPLrotal recognition when any of the following
criteria are met:

» the designation eliminates or significantly reduties inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities @cagnizing gains or losses on them on a
different basis; or

» the liabilities are part of a group of financiahbilities which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value basisacicordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; or

e the financial instrument contains an embedded dtviv, unless the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows orsitclear, with little or no analysis, that it
would not be separately recorded.

Financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in thensolidated balance sheet at fair value.
Changes in fair value are accounted for directlgriofit or loss. Interest incurred is recorded
as interest expense.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group hade®signated any financial liability as at
FVPL.

b. Other Financial Liabilities
This category pertains to financial liabilities tlaae neither held-for-trading nor designated as
at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. OtHarancial liabilities are subsequently carried
at amortized cost, taking into account the impéetpplying the effective interest rate method
of amortization (or accretion) for any related pngm discount and any directly attributable
transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are classified as curdiabilities if maturity is within the normal
operating cycle of the Company and it does not hen®nditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months from balanteeat date. Otherwise, these are classified as
noncurrent liabilities.

The Group’s other financial liabilities consist lonk loans, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, other current liabilities, deposits plyamd cumulative redeemable preferred
shares as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Determination of Fair Values

Fair value is determined by reference to the tretima price or other market prices. If such
market prices are not readily determinable, thealue of the consideration is estimated as the
sum of all future cash payments or receipts, distaml using the prevailing market rates of
interest for similar instruments with similar maties.

Day 1 Difference
Where the transaction price in a non-active maikaifferent from the fair value from other

observable current market transactions in the sasteument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observabédeket, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a Ddifference) in profit or loss unless it qualifie
for recognition as some other type of asset. Irecaghere use is made of data which is not
observable, the difference between the transagime and model value is only recognized in
profit or loss when the inputs become observablevloen the instrument is derecognized. For
each transaction, the Group determines the apjptepriethod of recognizing the day 1 difference.
Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are effand the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if, and only if, thera turrently enforceable legal right to offset the




recognized amounts and there is an intention tilesah a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet dateewhdthancial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired.

Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairm@sslon loans and receivables has been incurred,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as ttierelice between the financial asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated futush laws (excluding future expected credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at thendiish asset’s original effective interest rate.(ithe
effective interest rate computed at initial rectign). The carrying amount of the asset is reduned
the impairment loss, which is recognized in profitoss.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidehoapairment exists for financial assets that
are individually significant and collectively foinaincial assets that are not individually significa
Objective evidence includes observable data thaesao the attention of the Group about loss events
such as but not limited to significant financidffidulty of the counterparty, a breach of contraeich
as a default or delinquency in interest or princjp@yments, probability that the borrower will ente
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization. tfi$ determined that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually or collectlyeassessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, the asset is included in the group of finanessets with similar credit risk characteristios éhat
group of financial assets is collectively assegseimpairment. Assets that are individually asses
for impairment and for which an impairment losgiiscontinue to be recognized are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment. The impaitnaasessment is performed at each balance sheet
date. For the purpose of a collective evaluatibimmpairment, financial assets are grouped on the
basis of such credit risk characteristics suchussomer type, payment history, past-due status and
term.

Loans and receivables, together with the relatémlvahce, are written off when there is no

realistic prospect of future recovery and all deltal has been realized. If, in a subsequent gerio

the amount of the impairment loss decreases andlébeease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognittesl previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairrtosst is recognized in profit or loss, to the

extent that the carrying value of the asset doesxweed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Financial Assets Carried at Cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairmesslon an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cameoteliably measured, or on a derivative asset tha
is linked to and must be settled by delivery ofts@n unquoted equity instrument has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured adiffezence between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cashsfldigcounted at the current market rate of return
of a similar financial asset.



Financial Assets Carried at Fair Value

If an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amoumbgosing the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment) and its current fair valless any impairment loss previously recognized
in profit or loss, is transferred from the consatied statement of comprehensive income to profit
or loss.

In case of equity securities classified as AFSrfiaial asset, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair valakthe financial assets below its cost or where
other objective evidence of impairment exists. Tetermination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgment. The Group treaigrigicant” generally as 20% or more of the
original cost of investment, and “prolonged” asagee than six months. In addition, the Group
evaluates other factors, including normal volatilit share price for unquoted equities.

Impairment losses on equity investments are natregd through profit or loss. Increases in fair
value after impairment are recognized directlyonsolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Reversals in respect of equity instruments classiéis AFS financial asset are not recognized in
profit or loss. Reversals of impairment lossegleht instruments are recognized in profit or loss
if the increase in fair value of the instrument t@nobjectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognized in profit oslos

In case of debt securities classified as AFS firrasset, impairment is assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets carried at apeattcost. Future interest income is based on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued based oratbef interest used to discount future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loSsich accrual is recorded as part of “Interest
income” in the consolidated statement of comprelkenscome. If, in subsequent year, the fair
value of a debt security increases and the incremsde objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized in prafiboss, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a paradinancial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:

« the right to receive cash flows from the assetaxgsred;

» the Group retains the right to receive cash flowsfthe asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to arthparty under a pass-through arrangement;
or

« the Group has transferred its right to receive dishs from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewafdbe asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all risks and rewards ofdbget, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights toiveceash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all thesiakd rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the egfetfite Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the fofra guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amiaf the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be requirec:pay.



Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the @dtion under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or has expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaceg énother from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing ligbihre substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of thiginal liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respectivergarg amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andeadtzable value (NRV). Cost of inventories is
determined using the first-in, first-out methodRWis the selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated cost of marketingletiibution.

Value-Added Tax (VAT)

Input VAT is the 12% indirect tax paid by the Granghe course of the Group’s trade or business
on local purchase of goods or services, includaagé or use of property, from a VAT-registered

entity. For acquisition of capital goods over@D,000, the related input taxes are deferred and
amortized over the useful life or 60 months, whighreis shorter, commencing on the date of

acquisition. Deferred input VAT which is expectiedbe utilized more than 12 months after the

balance sheet date is included under “Goodwill attter noncurrent assets” account in the

consolidated balance sheet.

Output VAT pertains to the 12% tax due on the sdilenerchandise and lease or exchange of
taxable goods or properties or services by the &Brou

If at the end of any taxable month the output VAEeaeds the input VAT, the excess shall be paid
by the Group. Any outstanding balance is includedier “Accounts payable and accrued
expenses” account in the consolidated balance .shi#te input VAT exceeds the output VAT,
the excess shall be carried over to the succeadamh or months. Excess input VAT is included
under “Prepayments and other current assets” atéouhe consolidated balance sheet. Input
VAT on capital goods may, at the option of the Grobe refunded or credited against other
internal revenue taxes, subject to certain tax laws

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognizedthetashount of VAT.

Advances to Suppliers
Advances to suppliers are downpayments for aceguisitof property and equipment not yet
received. Once the property and equipment arevestethe asset is recognized together with the
corresponding liability.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except for land, are chraiecost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization, and any impairment in value.

Land is carried at revalued amount less any impantrim value. The difference between cost and
revalued amount goes to the equity section of tnesalidated balance sheet. The revalued
amount is determined by a professionally qualifiretependent appraiser.



The initial cost of property and equipment consistsits purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to itskivay condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditures incurred after the assets have bedninpo operation, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhaul costs, are recognizedofit pr loss in the period in which the costs
are incurred. In situations where it can be cledemonstrated that the expenditures have resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits ebgokto be obtained from the use of an item of
property and equipment beyond its originally assgésgandard of performance, the expenditures
are capitalized as an additional cost of the assets

Construction in progress includes cost of consitmacand other direct costs and is stated at cost
less any impairment in value. Construction in pesgris not depreciated until such time the
relevant assets are completed and put into opesdtirse.

Depreciation and amortization commence once thetasge available for use. It ceases at the
earlier of the date that it is classified as norenir asset held-for-sale and the date the asset is
derecognized.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line metbeer the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Years
Buildings and improvements 10to 12
Store furniture and equipment 5to 10
Office furniture and equipment 3to5
Transportation equipment 3to5
Computer equipment 3

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the atginuseful life of the improvements,
ranging from five to ten years, or the term of lgmese, whichever is shorter.

The assets’ estimated useful lives and depreciatiod amortization method are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the period and methiodepreciation and amortization are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits fronitdmas of property and equipment. When assets are
retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost or te@lamount and the related accumulated depreciation
and amortization and any impairment in value amneonged from the accounts and any resulting gain
or loss is recognized in profit or loss. The remdion increment in equity relating to the revalued
asset sold is transferred to retained earnings.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the bookkdisposed.

Software and Program Cost

Software and program cost, which are not spedlifidadentifiable and integral to a specific
computer hardware, are shown under “Goodwill aretiohoncurrent assets” in the consolidated
balance sheet. These are carried at cost, lessnatated amortization and any impairment in
value. Amortization is computed on a straight-limethod over their estimated useful life of five
years.




Impairment of Property and Equipment and Softvear@ Program Cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet datemthette is an indication that a nonfinancial
asset may be impaired. If any such indicationtexisr when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Group makes an estimatbeohsset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’sasih generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value-in-use and is determined for an iddial asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of tHome other assets or groups of assets. For land,
the asset’s recoverable amount is the land’s rige@rice, which may be obtained from its sale
in an arm’s length transaction. For goodwill, #isset’s recoverable amount is its value-in-use.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceed®dtsverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable anto In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their presafie; using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value oegnand risks specific to the asset. Impairment
losses, if any, are recognized in profit or losstinse expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each balance sheet dédewdwther there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no dorexist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is edéoha A previously recognized impairment loss
is reversed only if there has been a change ineltamates used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the last impairment Iass icognized. If that is the case, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its recovemht®unt. That increased amount cannot exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determinetiof depreciation and amortization, had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asgatevious years. Such reversal is recognized in
profit or loss, unless the asset is carried atloeeghamount, in which case, the reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase. After such reversal,dipreciation charge is adjusted in the future
periods to allocate the asset’s revised carryinguan less any residual value, on a systematic
basis over its remaining useful life.

Deposits
Deposits are amounts paid as guarantee in relatioroncancelable agreements entered into by

the Group. Deposits include rent deposits fordedianchise and service agreements. These
deposits are recognized at cost and can be refwordmaplied to future billings.

Business Combinations and Goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for usingaqeisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the aggregate of the consideratiosférred, measured at acquisition date fair
value and the amount of any non-controlling interigs the acquiree. For each business
combination, the acquirer measures the non-coimgoihterest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’'stifleble net assets. Acquisition costs incurred
are expensed and included in administrative exgense

When the Company acquires a business, it assdssdmancial assets and financial liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and desigmanh accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditionatae acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host corgitacthe acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in statfesacquisition date fair value of the acquirer’'s
previously held equity interest in the acquireeeigneasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.



Any contingent consideration to be transferred sy acquirer will be recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to thediae of the contingent consideration, which
is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be grdred in accordance with PAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive iacdfrthe contingent consideration is classified
as equity, it should not be re-measured until finally settled within equity.

Goodwill, included in “Goodwill and other noncurtesssets” in the consolidated balance sheet,
represents the excess of the cost of an acquisitren the fair value of the businesses acquired.
Following initial recognition, goodwill is measureat cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or raofrequently if event or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying value tm@yimpaired. Impairment is determined for
goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of dhgh-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units to which the goodwill relates. aAéhthe recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating urstgess than the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating uritswhich goodwill has been allocated, an

impairment loss is recognized. Impairment lossésing to goodwill cannot be reversed in future
periods.

Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares
Cumulative redeemable preferred shares that exthhitacteristics of a liability is recognized as a
financial liability in the consolidated balance shenet of transaction cost. The corresponding
dividends on those shares are charged as inteqgsbge in profit or loss.

Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue is recognized for cash receiveithtmme not yet earned. Deferred revenue is
recognized as revenue over the life of the reveoméract or upon delivery of goods or services.

Equity

Capital Stock
Capital stock is measured at par value for all ehassued and outstanding. When the Group
issues more than one class of stock, a separabeirgicis maintained for each class of stock and
number of shares issued and outstanding.

Additional Paid-in Capital

When the shares are sold at premium, the differ&eteeen the proceeds and the par value is
credited to the “Additional paid-in capital” accdaunWhen shares are issued for a consideration
other than cash, the proceeds are measured bgithalfue of the consideration received. In case
the shares are issued to extinguish or settlddb#ity of the Group, the shares shall be measured
either at the fair value of the shares issued iovEdue of the liability settled, whichever is neor
reliably determinable.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represent the cumulative balahperiodic net income or loss and changes in
accounting policy. When the retained earnings agtcbas a debit balance, it is called “deficit.” A
deficit is not an asset but a deduction from equity

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is stated at acquisition cost andeducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss on the purchase,,daliance or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments.



Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is gotdthat the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measurablyel The Group has assessed its revenue
arrangements against the criteria enumerated UhBr18,Revenue Recognitipand concluded
that it is acting as principal in all arrangemerdgscept for its sale of consigned goods. The
following specific recognition criteria must alse et before revenue is recognized:

Merchandise Sales

Revenue from merchandise sales is recognized whensignificant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyererRie is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, excluding discounts, returebates and sales taxes.

Franchise

Franchise fee is recognized upon execution of lwechise agreement and performance of initial
services required under the franchise agreemerdnchise revenue is recognized in the period
earned.

Marketing
Marketing income is recognized when service is eead. In case of marketing support funds,
revenue is recognized upon achievement of the niimimpurchase requirement of the suppliers.

Rental
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-liasidover the term of the lease.

Commission
Commission income is recognized upon the sale w$igned goods.

Interest
Interest income is recognized as it accrues base¢deoeffective interest rate method.

Costs and Expenses Recognition
Costs of merchandise sold are recognized in pofilboss at the point of sale. Expenses are
recognized in profit or loss upon utilization oktkervices or when they are incurred.

Other Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive income comprises items of ircand expense (including items previously
presented under the statement of changes in ediéty/are not recognized in profit or loss for the
year in accordance with PFRS.

Retirement Benefits

Retirement benefits cost is determined using tiogepted unit credit actuarial valuation method.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as incomexpense when the net cumulative
unrecognized actuarial gains and losses for eadividlual plan at the end of the previous
reporting year exceeded 10% of the higher of tlesqmt value of the retirement obligations and
the fair value of the net plan assets as of thet. d&hese gains or losses are recognized over the
expected average remaining working lives of theleyges participating in the plan.

Past service cost is recognized as an expenseoiit gr loss on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vestédhelbenefits are already vested following the
introduction of, or changes to the plan, past sergbst is recognized immediately.



The net retirement obligation is the aggregatthefpresent value of the retirement obligation and
actuarial gains and losses not recognized redugquhét service cost not yet recognized and the
fair value of the net plan assets out of which gdiibns are to be settled directly. If such
aggregate is negative, the asset is measured #wiee of such aggregate or the aggregate of
cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses amstl gervice cost and the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refumdni the plan or reductions in the future
contributions to the plan.

Leases

Finance leases, which transfer to the lessee suladhaall the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset, are capitalized at the inception ofehse at the fair value of the leased propertyfor,
lower, at the present value of the minimum leasgn@mts. Lease payments are apportioned
between the interest income and reduction of thedeeceivable so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the redsé/alnterest income is recognized directly in
profit or loss.

Leases where the lessor retains substantialipealtisks and rewards of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating leaseeaognized as an expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The determination of whether an arrangement igoatains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of evhibi fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or a@sdtthe arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset. A reassessment is made after inceptidredéase only if one of the following applies:

a. there is a change in contractual terms, other ghamewal or extension of the arrangement; or

b. a renewal option is exercised or extension is gdintinless the term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease team;

c. there is a change in the determination of whethiétlfnent is dependent on a specified asset;
or

d. there is a substantial change to the asset.

* Where are-assessment is made, lease accountihgwhaence or cease from the date when
the change in circumstance gave rise to the ressigmmnt for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) above, and
the date of renewal or extension for scenario (b).

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the aaijibn, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time @b rgady for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the respectsses. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period they occur. Borrowing costs consisintdrest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are initially reged at the exchange rate at the date of
transaction. Outstanding foreign currency-denotethamonetary assets and liabilities are
translated using the applicable exchange ratelah&a sheet date. Exchange differences arising
from translation of foreign currency monetary iteatsrates different from those at which they
were originally recorded are recognized in profitass.




Income Tax

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for terent and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid tadhkation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those thatliese enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred Income Tax
Deferred income tax is recognized on all tempothfferences at the balance sheet date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and tlaeiying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized &lr taxable temporary differences. Deferred
income tax assets are recognized for all deductédtgporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient future taxable profits Iwlle available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred income tax relating to items recognizieelatly in equity is recognized in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax asiseteviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probdb& sufficient future taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred i@ tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred income tax assets are reassessed at aaciteh sheet date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficfahire taxable profits will allow the deferred
income tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities aresweal at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or thslitiais settled, based on tax rates (and tax Jaws
that have been enacted or substantively enactbé aalance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities areetffif a legally enforceable right exists to st o
deferred income tax assets against deferred indaméabilities and the deferred income taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the samédaxauthority.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated ibiglidg the net income or (loss) for the year
attributable to common shareholders by the weightetlage number of shares outstanding during
the year, excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings (loss) per share is calculatedlimiding the net income or (loss) for the year
attributable to common shareholders by the weightedage number of shares outstanding during
the year, excluding treasury shares and adjustethéoeffects of all potential dilutive common
shares, if any.

In determining both the basic and diluted earnifmss) per share, the effect of stock dividenfds, i
any, is accounted for retrospectively.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are components of an entitywfich separate financial information is
available and evaluated regularly by managemendeiciding how to allocate resources and
assessing performance. The Group considers tihe gperation as its primary activity and its
only business segment. Franchising, renting opgries and commissioning on bills payment
services are considered an integral part of the resto operations.




Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Group haesent obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; (b) it is probable thabatilow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation; and é&cjeliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. If the effect of the time valuerabney is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at ataxerate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, whmgmepriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in theigimvdue to the passage of time is recognized
as interest expense. When the Group expects asmovor loss to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate assetvbeh the reimbursement is virtually certain
and its amount is estimable. The expense relatirany provision is presented in profit or loss,
net of any reimbursement.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in thensolidated financial statements. They are

disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow @gurces embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the cataeli financial statements but disclosed when
an inflow of economic benefit is probable. Conang assets are assessed
continually to ensure that developments are appatgy reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. If it has become virtually certairt @& inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
asset and the related income are recognized icotheolidated financial statements.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Post year-end events that provide additional in&tiom about the Group’s position at the balance
sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected ircdimsolidated financial statements. Post year-end
events that are non-adjusting events are disclaseithe notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

Use of Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimatesnd Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial shatgs in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and asesumftat affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and notes. Tdgnents, estimates and assumptions used in
the consolidated financial statements are based ummagement’s evaluation of relevant facts
and circumstances as of balance sheet date. Fetgnets may occur which can cause the
assumptions used in arriving at those judgmenttimates and assumptions to change.

The effects of any changes will be reflected in¢basolidated financial statements of the Group
as they become reasonably determinable.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accountiolicfes, management has made the following

judgments, apart from those involving estimatiowsjch have the most significant effect on
amounts recognized in the consolidated financakstents:

Determination of Functional Currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlyicgrastances relevant to the Company, the
functional currency of the Company has been detexdhio be the Peso. The Peso is the currency
of the primary economic environment in which then@@any operates. It is the currency that
mainly influences the revenue, costs and experfdbg €ompany.



Classification of Financial Instruments

The Group classifies a financial instrument, orcisnponents, on initial recognition as a financial
asset, liability or equity instrument in accordaneih the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of a financial tadiedility or equity instrument. The substance
of a financial instrument, rather than its legainip governs its classification in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Financial assets are classified as financial asgefs/PL, HTM financial assets, AFS financial
assets and loans and receivables. Financialitiabjlon the other hand, are classified as firalnci
liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilities

The Group determines the classification at initgdognition and, where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates this classification at every balamestdate.

The Group’s financial instruments include loans aackivables, AFS financial assets and other
financial liabilities (see Note 29).

Classification of Leases

a. Finance lease as lessor
The Group entered into a sale and leaseback trt@msadth an armored car service provider
where it has determined that the risks and rewaaldsed to the armored vehicles leased out
will be transferred to the lessee at the end ofdhse term. As such, the lease agreement was
accounted for as a finance lease (see Note 26).

b. Operating lease as lessee
The Group entered into various property leasesreviiehas determined that the risks and
rewards related to the properties are retained t#hHessors. As such, the lease agreements
were accounted for as operating leases (see Npte 26

c. Operating lease as lessor
The Company entered into property subleases deated properties. SSHI also entered into
lease agreements on properties which it owns. ddmpany and SSHI determined that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards oéstn properties which are leased out on
operating leases (see Note 26).

Impairment of Property and Equipment and Softveareé Program Costs

The Group determines whether its items of propartg equipment and software and program
costs are impaired on an annual basis. This regjain estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-
generating units to which the assets are allocafHte preparation of the estimated future cash
flows in determining value-in-use involves signdit judgment, estimation and assumption.

While management believes that the assumptions en@dappropriate and reasonable, significant
changes in these assumptions may materially afiechissessment of recoverable values and may
lead to future impairment charges.

The carrying value of property and equipment anftwsse and program costs amounted to
P1,948,517,102 and B1,612,379,628 as of Dece®ihed011 and 2010, respectively (see Notes 8
and 10). Based on management’s judgment, there werindicators of impairment of the
Group’s nonfinancial assets, thus, no impairmess l@ere recognized in 2011, 2010 and 2009.



Estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and dteisources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date that have a significant riskaoking a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities follow:

Determination of Fair Values

The fair value for financial instruments tradedactive markets at the balance sheet date is based
on their quoted market price or dealer price qumtat(bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction fornisaction costs. When current bid and asking
prices are not available, the price of the mosemedransaction provides evidence of the current
fair value as long as there has not been a significhange in economic circumstances since the
time of the transaction.

For all other financial instruments not listed im @ctive market, the fair value is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuatemhhiques include net present value techniques,
comparison to similar instruments for which marlkdtservable prices exist, options pricing
models, and other relevant valuation models.

Note 29 presents the fair values of the finanagigtruments and the methods and assumptions
used in estimating their fair values.

Impairment of Loans and Receivables

The Group reviews its loans and receivables at dxathnce sheet date to assess whether a
provision for impairment should be recognized iofpror loss or loans and receivables balance
should be written off. In particular, judgment imanagement is required in the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows when detamg the level of allowance required. Such
estimates are based on assumptions about a nurhifactors and actual results may differ,
resulting in future changes to the allowance. Muoeg, management evaluates the presence of
objective evidence of impairment which includeseslable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about loss events such as but not limitedsigmificant financial difficulty of the
counterparty, a breach of contract, such as a Wefaudelinquency in interest or principal
payments, probability that the borrower will ertb@nkruptcy or other financial re-organization.

» In addition to specific allowances against indivatly significant loans and receivables, the
Group also makes a collective impairment allowanagainst exposures which, although not
specifically identified as requiring a specificallance, have a greater risk of default than when
originally granted. This takes into considerattbe credit risk characteristics such as customer
type, payment history, past due status and term.

The carrying value of loans and receivables anezutd B708,505,045 and B571,226,437 as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see 28)te Allowance for impairment on loans and
receivables amounted to R 7,438,483 and R 3,627a49df December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively (see Notes 5 and 30). Provision fmpdirment amounted to B 3,810,991,
R1,622,883 and B9,798,327 in 2011, 2010 and 2686Pectively (see Notes 5 and 19).



Impairment of AFS Financial Assets

In determining the fair values of financial assetsanagement evaluates the presence of
significant and prolonged decline in the fair valok share price below its cost, the normal
volatility in the share price, the financial heal the investee and the industry and sector
performance like changes in operational and firereash flows. Any indication of deterioration
in these factors can have a negative impact om fhii value. The determination of what is
“significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment. &lGroup treats “significant” generally as 20%
or more of the original cost of investment, andtpnged” as greater than six months.

* The carrying value of AFS financial assets includedart of “Others” under “Goodwill and
other noncurrent assets” amounted to nil as of eee 31, 2011 and R 1,320,575 as of
December 31, 2010. (see Notes 10 and 29). No irmpat losses were recognized in 2011, 2010
and 20009.

Decline in Inventory Value

Provisions are made for inventories whose NRVlawneer than their carrying cost. This entails
determination of replacement costs and costs naigess make the sale. The estimates are based
on a number of factors, such as but not limitethéoage, status and recoverability of inventories.

The carrying value of inventories amounted to B,238,936 and B 402,419,577 as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see B)oteNo provisions for decline in inventory
value were recognized in 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Estimation of Useful Lives of Property and Equiptraard Software and Program Cost
The Group estimates the useful lives of its prgpand equipment and software and program cost
based on a period over which the assets are expiecke available for use.

Property and equipment, net of accumulated degtieni and amortization, amounted to
R1,946,032,976 and B1,607,296,761 as of DeceBih@011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 8).
The carrying amount of software and program cosilarted to B2,484,126 and B5,082,867 as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Njjte

Impairment of Goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaireteast on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-gemagatinits to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value-in-use amount requires managéeno make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unitasd to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

The carrying value of goodwill amounted to P65,584 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010. No
impairment losses were recognized in 2011, 2010 20@P (see Note 10). Based on the
assessment made by the Group, there is no impairmheoodwill as the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating units exceeds the carrying amoithe unit, including goodwill as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Estimation of Retirement Benefits

The determination of the obligation and retireméenefits is dependent on management’s
assumptions used by the actuary in calculating anabunts. Those assumptions are described in
Note 24 and include, among others, discount ragesapnum, expected annual rate of return on
plan assets and salary increase rates. Actudtgehat differ from the Group’s assumptions are
accumulated and amortized over future periods &edefore, generally affect the recognized
expense and recorded obligation in such futureoderi While the Group believes that the
assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, sgnifidifferences in the actual experience or
significant changes in the assumptions may malkga#fiect the retirement obligations.



The Group’s net retirement obligations amountedkt65,192,720 and B 57,453,582 as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Retineroenefits cost amounted to B12,368,401,
R11,220,501 and B21,979,689 in 2011, 2010 an®,2@B8pectively. Further details about the
assumptions used are disclosed in Note 24.

Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distindagslveen provisions and contingencies. The
Group provides for present obligations (legal ongtouctive) where it is probable that there will
be an outflow of resources embodying economic bsnéfat will be required to settle said
obligations. An estimate of the provision and eugency is based on known information at
balance sheet date, net of any estimated amounhthabe reimbursed to the Group. If the effect
of the time value of money is material, provisicensd contingencies are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks spee¢d the liability. The amount of provision and
contingency is being re-assessed at least on arabbasis to consider new relevant information.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group haggma for litigation losses amounting to
R7,066,290 and is reported under “Accounts payabteaccrued expenses” in the consolidated
balance sheets. Provisions and contingenciesighef explained in Note 34.

Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognized foreaiporary deductible differences to the extent
that it is probable that sufficient future taxalpeofits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilizéhnagement has determined based on business
forecast of succeeding years that there is enoagabte profits against which the recognized
deferred income tax assets will be realized.

The Group’s recognized deferred income tax assetsmated to B47,717,236 and B46,653,929 as
of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (sde Rip).

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investment

2011 2010
Cash on hand and in banks B394,696,749 B322,975,839
Cash equivalents - 35,753,695

P394,696,749 P358,729,534

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective Hepksit rates. Cash equivalents are made for
varying periods up to three months depending onirtteediate cash requirements of the Group
and earn interest at the respective cash equiviatas.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, SSHI's short-iexastment, which pertains to time deposit
which has maturity date of more than 90 days, atsulnto B 10,409,907 and
P10,141,555, respectively.

Interest income from savings and deposits accoants short-term investment amounted to
B2,911,480, B3,675,553 and B3,387,088 in 2a11) and 2009, respectively (see Note 22).



Receivables

2011 2010
Suppliers R99,035,030 R58,816,472
Franchisees 89,638,852 40,871,647
Store operators 15,683,186 9,718,957
Employees 15,407,124 10,321,643
Rent 7,068,009 5,709,582
Notes 1,328,983 728,097
Current portion of lease receivable - net of

unearned interest income amounting to B

291,204

and B378,850 as of December 31, 2011

and 2010, respectively (Note 26) 1,300,075 1,212,430
Insurance receivable 319,208 10,986,094
Due from Philseven Foundation, Inc. (PFI)

(Note 25) 173,945 888,425
Deposits 1,009,864 1,009,864
Others 15,763,494 21,706,916

246,727,770 161,970,127
Less allowance for impairment 7,438,483 3,627,492

P239,289,287 P158,342,635

The classes of receivables of the Group are asasll

e Suppliers - pertains to receivables from the Grswguippliers for display allowances, annual
volume discount and commission income from diffesmrvice providers.

« Franchisees - pertains to receivables for the itorghoans obtained by the franchisees at the
start of their store operations.

« Store operators - pertains to the advances givahif party store operators under service
agreements (see Note 32).

« Employees - includes car loans, salary loans agl slaortages from stores which are charged
to employees.

« Rent - pertains to receivables from sublease agreenwith third parties, which are based on
an agreed fixed monthly rate or as agreed upohédyparties.

Receivables are noninterest-bearing and are ggnemal30 to 90 day terms except for lease
receivable with a 7% interest rate per annum.

The Company collected B10,858,906 and B8,606i6 711 and 2010, respectively, from the
insurance company as insurance proceeds for th&uyis properties destroyed by the typhoon
“Ondoy”. As of December 31, 2011, there is no tanding receivable from the insurance
company related to the claim. The gain amountng19,465,584 is included as “Other income”
in the 2010 consolidated statement of comprehernsogme.

Movements in allowance for impairment are as foow

2011
Suppliers Others Total
Beginning balances BP381,786 B3,245,706 B3,627,492
Provision for the year (Note 19) 1,396,168 2,414,823 3,810,991
Ending balances R1,777,954 P5,660,529 P7,438,483




2010

Suppliers Others Total
Beginning balances B7,535,300 P3,308,648 P1M833
Provision for the year (Note 19) 204,716 1,418,167 1,622,883
Write-off (7,140,854) - (7,140,854)
Recovery of bad debts (217,376) (1,481,109) (1,698,485)
Ending balances P381,786 B3,245,706 B3,627,492
Inventories

2011 2010

At cost (Note 18):

Warehouse merchandise
Store merchandise

P271,683,488
247,575,448

P200,869,257
201,550,320

P519,258,936 P402,419,577

Prepayments and Other Current Assets

2011 2010
Deferred input VAT P43,844,078 R35,627,256
Advances to suppliers 47,628,097 46,036,750
Prepaid rent (Note 10) 36,729,050 32,972,222
Pre-operating store expenses 11,354,992 10,387,131
Advances for expenses 5,176,635 3,268,768
Current portion of deferred lease (Notes 10 and
26) 2,425,557 1,363,270
Prepaid uniform 2,145,413 2,400,798
Supplies 1,825,459 1,915,107
Others 10,392,857 5,635,795

P161,522,138 P139,607,097

Deferred input VAT pertains to the acquisition apital goods over B1,000,000 which are being
amortized over the useful life or 60 months, whigheis shorter, commencing on the date of
acquisition. Current portion of deferred input VAT 2011 and 2010 amounted to 43,844,078
and B35,627,256, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Movements in property and equipment are as follows:

2011
Land- Store Office
at revalued Buildings and Furniture and Furniture and Transportation Computer Leasehold Construction
amount Improvements  Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment Improvements  In-Progress Total

Costs/Revalued Amount
Beginning balances
Additions

P44,481,000 P109,312,911 P1,176,847,32419,230,096 P37,624,956 P248,482,190 P8280BY#, P41,487,041 P2,906,359,589
- 866,938 348,799,410 106,667,047 16,034,780 53,854,534 12189 69,351,878 717,091,736
(440,868,874)

Disposals - — (218,620,219) (71,994,025) (14,671,134) (125,977,509) (9,605,987) -
Reclassifications — — — 203,179 — — 37,828,990  (38,032,169) —
Ending balances 44,481,000 110,179,849 1,307,026,502 454,106,297 ,988%02 176,359,215 978,634,236 72,806,750 3,88251
Accumulated Depreciation

and Amortization
Beginning balances - 60,016,925 455,617,362 209,862,824 24,284,740 T9®8BY0 349,305,607 -1,299,062,828
Depreciation and

amortization (Note 19) - 4,941,169 188,112,964 56,852,655 6,069,588 31,284,9 91,094,154 — 378,355,521
Disposals — — (218,620,219) (71,994,025) (14,671,134) (125,977,509) (9,605,987) — (440,868,874)
Ending balances — 64,958,094 425,110,107 194,721,454 15,683,194 82832 430,793,774 -1,236,549,475
Net Book Values P44,481,000 P45,221,755 P881,896 P259,384,843 P23,305,408 PR71,076,363 847462 PR72,806,750 P1,946,032,976




2010

Land - Store Office
at revalued Buildings and Furniture and Furniture and Transportation
amount Improvements  Equipment Equipment Equipment

Computer Leasehold
Equipment Improvements

Construction

In-Progress Total

Costs/Revalued Amount
Beginning balances

P44,481,000 P106,835,234 B63MI1 PR341,773,268 PR31,477,634 P234,546,5632,872,530

R43,745,821 P2,273,901,153

Additions - 2,477,677 364,185,866 83,407,721 7,246,905 16,096,0 91,525,378 107,064,274 671,923,830
Disposals - - (26,007,646) (5,950,893) (1,099,583) (2,080,394) (4,326,878) - (39,465,394)
Reclassifications - - - - - - 109,323,054 (109,323,054) -
Ending balances 44,481,000 109,312,911 1,176,847,3%19,230,096 37,624,956 248,482,190 828,894,084 ,48F1041 2,906,359,589
Accumulated Depreciation

and Amortization
Beginning balances — 55,131,255 358,677,752 170,264,855 20,393,889 18135 279,870,057 -1,046,656,723
Depreciation and

amortization (Note 19) — 4,884,908 123,939,882 45,462,652 4,626,521 40,267,0 72,782,765 — 291,803,754
Disposals - —  (26,007,646) (5,883,148) (1,099,583) (2,080,394) (4,326,878) —  (39,397,649)
Reclassifications — 762 (992,626) 18,465 363,913 (370,177) 979,663 — —
Ending balances — 60,016,925 455,617,362 209,862,824 24,284,740  TSBY0 349,305,607 -1,299,062,828

Net Book Values P44,481,000 P49,295,986 P721,229,949 P209,3B7,2P13,340,216  P48,506,820 P479,588,477  P4D487R1,607,296,761

On February 5, 2007, the Group revalued its laitld @ost amounting to B39,866,864 at appraised
value of P44,481,000, as determined by a profeabio qualified independent appraiser. The
appraisal increase of B3,229,895, net of B1,384deferred income tax liability, resulting from
the revaluation was credited to “Revaluation inaeatmon land” account under equity section of
the consolidated balance sheets. The appraiser wehs determined using the market data
approach, wherein the value of the land is basedabes and listings of comparable properties
registered within the vicinity.

On September 26, 2009, nine of the Group’s stoere wevastated by the typhoon “Ondoy”. The
Group recognized loss from the said typhoon amagnid B3,285,171, which represents the net
book value of the property and equipment destrdyyetihe typhoon as of that said date.

The carrying value of the Group’s capitalized iaggramounted to P13,130 and B1,677,864 as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010.

The cost of fully depreciated property and equipimidsat are still being used in operations
amounted to B45,007,187 and B585,711,873 asadrbleer 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. No
property and equipment are pledged nor treatedeasrity to the outstanding liablities, as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Deposits

2011 2010
Rent R155,379,984 PR142,148,088
Utilities 29,267,868 23,969,222
Refundable 26,789,004 11,805,629
Others 4,527,970 3,273,451

P215,964,826

P181,196,390




Refundable

Refundable deposits on rent are computed at aradraast as follows:

2011 2010
Face value of security deposits B27,391,286 B26,918,039
Additions 25,186,036 1,073,247
Refunded (3,974,386) (600,000)
Unamortized discount (21,813,932) (15,585,657)
B26,789,004 B11,805,629
Movements in unamortized discount are as follows:
2011 2010
Beginning balance B15,585,657 P16,591,060
Additions 8,616,062 257,859
Amortization (Note 22) (2,387,787) (1,035,216)
Refunded - (228,046)
Ending balance B21,813,932 P15,585,657
10. Goodwill and Other Noncurrent Assets
2011 2010
Deferred input VAT - net of current portion B103,958,618 B93,062,349
Goodwiill 65,567,524 65,567,524
Deferred lease - net of current portion (Note 26) 15,266,788 10,492,697
Garnished accounts (Note 34) 6,241,465 9,676,376
Lease receivable - net of current portion (Note 26) 3,448,336 4,748,411
Software and program cost 2,484,126 5,082,867
Prepaid rent - net of current portion 6,134,227 -
Others 3,360,261 5,981,595
P206,461,345 P194,611,819
Goodwill

On March 22, 2004, the Group purchased the le#édatghts and store assets of Jollimart
Philippines Corporation (Jollimart) for a total swheration of B130,000,000. The excess of the
acquisition cost over the fair value of the assetpired was recorded as goodwill amounting to

B70,178,892.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill was estthdiased on the value-in-use calculation using
cash flow projections from financial budgets apgab¥by senior management covering a five year
period. The pre-tax discount rate applied to dash projections is 10.22% in 2011 and 10.65%

in 2010. The cash flows beyond the five-year mkace extrapolated using a 3% growth rate in

2011 and 2010 that is the same as the long-ternagegrowth rate for the retail industry.

No store acquired from Jollimart was closed in2@thd 2010. In 2009, the Group has closed one
store out of the 25 remaining stores it purchagsed fJollimart.

recognized in 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Goodwill is allocated to the group of cash genegaunit (CGU) which comprises the working

capital and property and equipment of all the paseldl stores’ assets.

No impairment loss was

Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculatior2911 and 2010 follow:



Sales and Cost Ratio

Sales and cost ratio are based on average vatheyed in the three years preceding the start of
the budget period. These are increased over thugebuperiod for anticipated efficiency
improvements. Sales are projected to increasevbytd three percent per annum while the cost
ratio is set at 68.00% - 70.00% of sales per annum.

Discount Rates

Discount rates reflect management’s estimatehefrisks specific to the CGU. Management
computed for its weighted average cost of capM@hCC). In computing for its WACC, the
following items were considered:

* Average high and low range of average bank lendites as of year-end
* Yield on a 10-year Philippine zero coupon bondfastuation date

* Market risk premium

* Company relevered beta

* Alpharisk

Growth Rate Estimates

Rates are based on average historical growth rhiehws consistent with the expected average
growth rate for the industry. Annual inflation arate of possible reduction in transaction count
were also considered in determining growth rateslus

Management recognized that unfavorable conditiauddcmaterially affect the assumptions used
in the determination of value in use. An increab6.52% and 2.20% in the discount rates, or a
reduction of growth rates by 1.00% and 2.00%, wailed a value in use equal to the carrying
amount of the cash generating units in 2011 an@ 2@kpectively.

Deferred Lease

Deferred lease pertains to Day 1 loss recognizededundable deposits on rent, which is
amortized on a straight-line basis over the terrtmefrelated leases.

Movements in deferred lease are as follows:

2011 2010
Beginning balance P11,855,967 P13,186,794
Additions 8,616,062 257,859
Amortization (Note 26) (2,779,684) (1,414,700)
Refunded - (173,986)
Ending balance 17,692,345 11,855,967
Less current portion 2,425,557 1,363,270
Noncurrent portion B15,266,788 P10,492,697

Garnished Accounts
Garnished accounts pertain to the amount set dsidbe Group, as required by the courts, in
order to answer for litigation claims should theulés be unfavorable to the Group (see Note 34).




Software and Program Cost

Movements in software and program cost are asvistio

2011 2010
Cost
Beginning balance P14,661,985 R14,500,085
Acquisition - 161,900
Ending balance 14,661,985 14,661,985
(Forward)

2011 2010
Accumulated Amortization
Beginning balance B9,579,118 B6,489,390
Amortization (Note 19) 2,598,741 3,089,728
Ending balance 12,177,859 9,579,118
Net Book Values B2,484,126 B5,082,867

11.

Bank Loans

Bank loans represent unsecured Peso-denominatetitesim borrowings from various local
banks, payable in lump-sum in 2011 and 2010 withuahinterest rates ranging from 3.50% to
4.25%, 4.20% to 5.20% and 4.90% to 5.50% in 20D01,02and 2009, respectively, which are
repriced monthly based on market conditions. Thecgreds of these loans were used for the
operations of the Group.

Movements in bank loans are as follows:

2011 2010
Beginning balance B320,000,000 B340,000,000
Availment 230,000,000 290,000,000
Payments (175,333,333) (310,000,000)
Ending balance B374,666,667 PB320,000,000

Interest expense from these bank loans amountBd3@®%97,647, B16,033,249, and B26,070,437
in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note Riterest payable amounted to B1,174,528 and
B874,892 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, resggctsee Note 12). The carrying value of

the Group’s capitalized interest amounted to B3(B,dnd B1,677,864 as of December 31, 2011

and 2010

12.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
2011 2010

Trade payable B1,066,740,769 B905,064,399
Rent (Notes 26) 47,263,813 59,026,978
Utilities 38,219,462 31,187,454
Employee benefits 23,954,117 34,009,286
Advertising and promotion 16,054,548 18,831,169
Outsourced services 12,461,025 8,042,071
Security services 3,054,419 3,610,705
Bank charges 2,278,700 2,181,700
Interest (Note 11) 1,174,528 874,892
Others 32,736,076 15,510,753

P1,243,937,457 P1,078,339,407




The trade suppliers generally provide 15 or 30-dagdit terms to the Group. Prompt payment
discounts ranging from 0.5% to 5.0% are given Iyimber of trade suppliers. All other payables
are due within 3 months.

13. Other Current Liabilities
2011 2010
Non-trade accounts payable B188,758,358 P164,122,488
Withholding taxes 22,974,557 18,896,178
Service fees payable 19,370,472 15,694,145
Output VAT 19,205,290 25,721,487
Retention payable 18,688,531 18,459,378
Royalty (Note 25) 10,353,333 8,465,255
Employee related liabilities 3,860,665 3,655,040
Current portion of deferred revenue on:
Exclusivity contract (Notes 16 and 32) 1,934,524 1,934,524
Finance lease (Notes 16 and 26) 589,567 589,567
Others 12,700,219 8,261,236
P298,435,516 B265,799,298
Non-trade accounts payable pertains to payabsippliers of goods or services that are not
directly related to the Company’s ordinary couwrsbusiness.
14. Deposits Payable
2011 2010
Franchisees (Note 32) B88,795,094 B75,679,031
Service agreements (Note 32) 69,260,533 55,282,328
Rent 13,402,206 11,900,778
R171,457,833 PR142,862,137
15. Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares

Cumulative redeemable preferred shares, whichredeemable at the option of the holder,
represent the share of PSC-ERP through its truBReAMTG, in SSHI's net assets pertaining to

preferred shares. PSC-ERP is entitled to an anf@ahranteed Preferred Dividend” in the

earnings of SSHI starting April 5, 2002, the dateew the 25% of the subscription on preferred
shares have been paid, in accordance with the Guirpo Code.

The guaranteed annual dividends shall be calculated paid in accordance with the
Shareholder's Agreement dated November 16, 200@hwprovides that the dividend shall be
determined by the BOD of SSHI using the prevailmarket conditions and other relevant factors.
Further, the preferred shareholder shall not ppete in the earnings of SSHI except to the extent
of guaranteed dividends and whatever is left ofr8tained earnings be declared as dividends in
favor of common shareholders. Guaranteed pref@liredends included under “Interest expense”
in the consolidated statements of comprehensivemecamounted to B327,000, B364,920 and
B412,380 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively K&mte 21). Interest payable included under
“Accounts payable and accrued expenses” in the atidlated balance sheets amounted to
R327,000 and B364,920 as of December 31, 2012Gk] respectively.



16.

Deferred Revenue

2011 2010
Deferred revenue on exclusivity contract (Note 32) PB1,264,881 R3,199,405
Deferred revenue on finance lease (Note 26) 1,277,398 1,866,965
Deferred revenue - others 1,515,203 1,933,930
P4,057,482 B7,000,300
Deferred Revenue on Exclusivity Contract
Movements in deferred revenue on exclusivity aitare as follows:
2011 2010
Beginning balance B5,133,929 B3,913,690
Additions - 6,696,429
Amortization (Note 32) (1,934,524) (5,476,190)
3,199,405 5,133,929
Less current portion 1,934,524 1,934,524
Noncurrent portion B1,264,881 B3,199,405
Deferred Revenue on Finance Lease
Movements in deferred revenue on finance leasasfellows:
2011 2010
Beginning balance B2,456,532 B3,166,197
Less amortization (Note 26) 589,567 709,665
1,866,965 2,456,532
Less current portion 589,567 589,567
Noncurrent portion B1,277,398 B1,866,965

17.

Equity

On July 21, 2011, the Company’s BOD and at leg&&toRthe Company’s stockholders approved
the recommendation for a stock dividend declaratorresponding to 15% of the outstanding
common shares of the Company of 301,428,666. Retaie of entitlement is August 19, 2011.

On the same date, the Company’s BOD approved tblardéion of cash dividend in the amount
of 10 centavos per share on its outstanding 301668&hares. The record date for entitlement to

said cash dividend is August 19, 2011. Cash diddeamounted to B30,142,867.

On July 29, 2010, the Company’s BOD and at leé2the Company’s stockholders approved
the recommendation for a stock dividend declaratiorresponding to 5% of the outstanding
common shares of the Company of 287,074,922 sharBecord date of entitlement is

August 27, 2010.

On the same date, the Company’s BOD approved tblarddon of cash dividend in the amount
of five centavos per share on its outstanding Z8%¥d22 shares. The record date for entitlement

to said cash dividend is August 27, 2010. Caslieids amounted to B14,353,746.

On June 25, 2009, the Company’s BOD approved ttmmmendation for a stock dividend
declaration corresponding to 10% of the outstandorgmon shares of the Company of

260,977,200. The stock dividends approved by thagany’s BOD were approved by at least

2/3 of the Company’s stockholders on July 16, 20R@8cord date of entitlement is

August 14, 2009.



There are 686,250 shares that are in the treasumpunting to B 2,923,246 as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010. There are no movemémt Group’s treasury shares in 2011 and
2010.

The Company’s retained earnings is restricted te thxtent of B 56,484,212 and
B36,014,643 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010ectegly for the undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries and B2,923,246 as of December 31, &0d 2010 for the cost of treasury shares.

The Group was listed with the Philippine Stock lkage on February 4, 1998 with total listed
shares of 71,382,000 common shares consisting7 808,000 shares for public offering and
24,382,000 shares for private placement. TherP&empany offered the share at a price of
R4.40. As of December 31, 2011, the Parent Caoynpas a total of 666 shareholders on record.

Movements in the number of shares are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Beginning balance 302,114,918 287,761,172 261,663,450
Issuance of stock dividends 45,214,298 14,353,746 26,097,722
Ending balance 347,329,216 302,114,918 287,761,172
18. Cost of Merchandise Sales
2011 2010 2009

Merchandise inventory, beginning B402,419,577
Net purchases 7,208,336,058

P415,652,671
5,572,037,384

B339,556,385
4,447,812,276

7,610,755,635
Less merchandise inventory,

ending 519,258,936

5,987,690,055

402,419,577

4,787,368,661

415,652,671

P7,091,496,699 B5,585,270,478

P4,371,715,990

19. General and Administrative Expenses

2011 2010 2009
Communication, light and water B610,997,841 B528,123,729 B371,580,742
Outside services (Note 32) 527,283,460 389,212,920 299,568,215
Rent (Note 26) 401,628,602 341,397,389 325,249,255
Depreciation and amortization

(Note 8) 378,355,521 291,803,754 203,905,718

Personnel costs (Note 23) 271,925,395 287,246,482 285,712,784
Trucking services 128,105,699 89,415,946 68,511,742
Advertising and promotion 119,151,632 101,175,106 73,763,919
Royalties (Note 25) 106,490,524 90,693,176 70,386,281
(Forward)

2011 2010 2009
Repairs and maintenance P101,447,166 B86,964,361 P60,593,879



Supplies 98,718,890 81,307,138 56,019,871
Taxes and licenses 76,189,697 68,340,335 64,648,509
Warehousing services 69,397,133 58,179,955 48,668,549
Entertainment, amusement and

recreation 28,169,708 36,145,205 25,874,891
Transportation and travel 26,472,937 23,642,048 26,539,417
Inventory losses 19,906,752 14,659,113 10,639,655
Insurance 6,032,839 4,216,516 4,634,768
Dues and subscription 5,898,075 5,143,890 5,123,248
Provision for impairment

of receivables (Note 5) 3,810,991 1,622,883 9,798,327
Amortization of software and

program costs (Note 10) 2,598,741 3,089,728 3,053,728
Others 29,596,375 29,010,430 36,685,831

P3,012,177,978

P2,531,390,104

P2,050,959,329

20. Marketing Income

2011 2010 2009
Display charges P195,671,478 P161,168,392 R119,307,326
Promotions 171,330,886 112,766,444 84,413,455
Marketing support funds
(Note 32) 119,820,976 70,306,815 33,898,150

P486,823,340

P344,241,651

P237,618,931

21. Interest Expense

2011 2010 2009
Interest on bank loans B15,697,647 B16,033,249 B26,070,437
Guaranteed preferred dividends 327,000 364,920 412,380
B16,024,647 P16,398,169 B26,482,817
22. Interest Income
2011 2010 2009
Bank deposits B2,911,480 B3,675,553 B3,387,088
Accretion of refundable deposits
(Note 9) 2,387,787 1,035,216 987,606
Finance lease (Note 26) 378,850 403,887 465,251
Accretion of notes receivable 186,596 241,113 -
B5,864,713 B5,355,769 B4,839,945
23. Personnel Costs
2011 2010 2009
Salaries and wages p227,335,598 B242,069,716 P231,983,627
Employee benefits 32,221,396 33,956,265 31,749,468
Retirement benefits cost 12,368,401 11,220,501 21,979,689




(Note 24)

P271,925,395 P287,246,482 P285,712,784

24. Retirement Benefits

The Group maintains a trusteed, non-contributagfingd benefit retirement plan covering all
qualified employees. Normal retirement benefits equal to the employee’s retirement pay as
defined in Republic Act No. 7641 multiplied by tiiears of service. Normal retirement date is
the attainment of age 60 and completion of at faastyears of service.

The following tables summarize the components eif netirement benefits cost recognized in
profit or loss and the funding status and amouwstsgnized in the consolidated balance sheets:

a. Net retirement benefits cost for the year arlobows:

2011
PSC CDI Total
Current service cost B4,637,501 B351,324 B4,988,825
Interest cost 7,377,255 540,217 7,917,472
Expected return on plan assets (645,048) (31,373) (676,421)
Net actuarial losses 138,525 — 138,525
Net retirement benefits cost B11,508,233 B860,168 B12,368,401
2010
PSC CDI Total
Current service cost B3,706,434 B705,342 B4/Z61,
Interest cost 6,749,595 520,065 7,269,660
Expected return on plan assets (430,680) (30,255) (460,935)
Net retirement benefits cost B10,025,349 B1,B5,1 PB11,220,501
2009
PSC CDI Total
Current service cost B345,868 B146,754 B492,622
Interest cost 20,284,950 1,347,433 21,632,383
Expected return on plan assets (554,917) (42,468) (597,385)
Net actuarial losses 436,078 15,991 452,069
Net retirement benefits cost B20,511,979 B1,4607,7 PB21,979,689
Net retirement obligations recognized by theuprare as follows:
2011
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement
obligations B96,296,328 B6,764,360 P103,060,688
Less fair value of net plan
assets 12,239,143 565,547 12,804,690
Unfunded retirement obligation 84,057,185 6,198,813 90,255,998
Unrecognized net actuarial
gain (losses) (25,368,578) 305,300 (25,063,278)
Net retirement obligations P58,688,607 P6,504,113 P65,192,720




2010

PSC CDI Total

Present value of retirement
obligations R72,897,778 R5,615,558 B78,513,336
Less fair value of net plan
assets 10,750,804 522,878 11,273,682
Unfunded retirement obligation 62,146,974 5,092,680 67,239,654
Unrecognized net actuarial
gain (losses) (10,337,337) 551,265 (9,786,072)
Net retirement obligations P51,809,637 P5,643,945 R57,453,582
Changes in the present value of the retirerelngations are as follows:
2011

PSC CDI Total
Beginning balances B72,897,778 B5,615,558 P78,513,336
Current service cost 4,637,501 351,324 4,988,825
Interest cost 7,377,255 540,217 7,917,472
Benefits paid (4,018,237) - (4,018,237)
Actuarial losses 15,402,031 257,261 15,659,292
Ending balances P96,296,328 B 6,764,360 P103,060,688

2010

PSC CDI Total
Beginning balances R62,438,440 R4,864,964 B67,303,404
Current service cost 3,706,434 705,342 4,411,776
Interest cost 6,749,595 520,065 7,269,660
Benefits paid (6,248,673) - (6,248,673)
Actuarial losses (gains) 6,251,982 (474,813) 5,777,169
Ending balances B72,897,778 P5,615,558 B78,513,336




d. Changes in the fair value of net plan assetsisifollows:

2011
PSC CDI Total
Beginning balances B10,750,804 B522,878 B11,273,682
Expected return on plan assets 645,048 31,373 676,421
Contribution 4,629,263 - 4,629,263
Benefits paid (4,018,237) - (4,018,237)
Actuarial gains 232,265 11,296 243,561
Ending balances R12,239,143 B565,547 P12,804,690
2010
PSC CDI Total
Beginning balances B7,178,008 B504,251 R7,682,259
Expected return on plan assets 430,680 30,255 460,935
Contribution 9,434,042 - 9,434,042
Benefits paid (6,248,673) - (6,248,673)
Actuarial losses (43,253) (11,628) (54,881)
Ending balances R10,750,804 B522,878 P11,273,682
Breakdown of the Group’s net plan assets arelks\vis:
2011 2010
Investments in trust and mutual funds 46.00% 41.90%
Investments in equity securities 54.00% 58.10%
100.00% 100.00%

Actual return on plan assets amounted to B877)32®11 and B387,427 in 2010 for PSC and

P42,669 in 2011 and R18,627 in 2010 for CDI.

The overall expected rate of return on plan assetdetermined based on the market prices

prevailing on the date applicable to the periodravigich the obligation is to be settled.

The Company expects to contribute BP18,142,138 thefined benefit plan in 2012.

The principal assumptions used in determining egtement benefits cost for the Group’s plan at

the beginning of the year are as follows:

PSC CDI
2011 2010 2011 2010
Number of employees 655 669 20 21
Discount rate per annum 5.80% 10.81% 5.54% 10.69%
Expected annual rate of
return on plan assets 5.50% 6.00% 5.50% 6.00%
Salary increase rate 5.50% 6.00% 5.50% 6.00%



Amounts for the current and prior four periods asdollows:

2011
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement
obligations P96,296,328 B6,764,360 P103,060,688
Fair value of net plan assets 12,239,143 565,547 12,804,690
Unfunded retirement obligation 84,057,185 6,198,813 90,255,998
Experience loss (gain)
adjustments
on retirement obligations 324,950 (267,061) 57,889
Experience gain adjustments on
plan assets 232,265 11,296 243,561
2010
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement
obligations R72,897,778 P5,615,558 R77,762,742
Fair value of net plan assets 10,750,804 522,878 11,273,682
Unfunded retirement obligation 62,146,974 5,092,680 67,239,654
Experience gain adjustments on
retirement obligations (6,251,982) (857,124) (7,109,106)
Experience loss adjustments on
plan assets (43,253) (11,628) (54,881)
2009
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement
obligations B62,438,440 B4,864,964 B67,303,404
Fair value of net plan assets 7,178,008 504,251 7,682,259
Unfunded retirement obligation 55,260,432 4,360,713 59,621,145
Experience gain adjustments on
retirement obligations (12,458,512) (857,124) (13,315,636)
Experience loss adjustments on
plan assets (69,753) (10,086) (79,839)
2008
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement
obligations B54,006,788 B4,174,204 B58,180,992
Fair value of net plan assets 6,165,743 471,869 6,637,612
Unfunded retirement obligation 47,841,045 3,702,335 51,543,380
Experience loss adjustments on
retirement obligations 46,616 2,532,432 2,579,048
Experience loss adjustments on
plan assets (283,759) (21,716) (305,475)
2007
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement
obligations B50,892,911 B1,674,978 B52,567,889
Fair value of net plan assets 6,039,312 462,193 6,501,505

(Forward)



2007

PSC CDI Total
Unfunded retirement obligation R44,853,599 R1,212,785 R46,066,384
Experience loss (gain)
adjustment on retirement
obligations 2,872,179 (94,636) 2,777,543
Experience loss adjustments on
plan assets (477,943) (28,521) (506,464)

The discount rate of PSC and CDI as of DecembeP@11 are 5.80% and 5.54%, respectively,
based on market rates consistent with the obligadfothe defined benefit plan. Future annual
increase in salary as of December 31, 2011 is 5.B%pected rate of return as of

December 31, 2011 is 5.5%.

25.

Related Party Transactions

Related party relationships exist when one paaty the ability to control, directly or indirectly

through one or more intermediaries, the other partgxercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisior&uch relationships also exist between and/or
among entities which are under common control With reporting enterprise, or between and/or
among the reporting enterprises and their key nemagt personnel, directors or its stockholders.

Transactions with related parties consist of:

a. The Group executed a licensing agreement with Sd&lemen, Inc. (SEI), a stockholder
organized in Texas, U.S.A. This grants the Grdup éxclusive right to use the 7-Eleven
System in the Philippines. In accordance withabeeement, the Group pays, among others,
royalty fee to SEI based on a certain percentagaasfthly gross sales, net of gross receipts
tax.

Royalty fees recorded by the Group amounted to ®4980,524, B 90,693,176, and
R70,386,281 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectivielyyalty fees are paid on a monthly basis.

Royalty payable included under “Other current litibs” in the consolidated balance sheets
amounted to B10,353,333 and B8,465,255 as ofnilre31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

b. PSC has transactions with PFI, a foundatiom widmmon key management of the Group,
consisting of noninterest-bearing advances pergimprimarily to salaries, taxes and other
operating expenses initially paid by PSC for PFAmounts due from PFI amounted to
B173,945 and B888,425 as of December 31, 2012Gik@ respectively. Amount due to PFI
included under others in “Other current liabilitiesn the consolidated balance sheets
amounted to B84,100 and B12,099 as of Decemb@031 and 2010, respectively.

c. Compensation of key management personnel dodl@s's:

2011 2010 2009
Short-term employee benefits P31,624,639 B33,663,181 P32,583,183
Post-employment benefits 1,664,000 1,662,152 1,752,710
Other long-term benefits 376,073 376,073 376,073

P33,664,712 P35,701,406 PB34,711,966




26. Leases

Finance Lease as Lessor

In March 2007, PSC entered into a five-year satklaaseback finance lease agreement with an
armored car service provider. The lease has muostaf renewal and no escalation clauses.
Unguaranteed residual values accruing to the Coyngamounted to B300,000.

In March 2010, the Company amended its agreemétht thhe armored car service provider
extending the lease term for another five yeamnfibarch 1, 2010 to February 1, 2015, imposing
7% interest per annum on the restructured loangatitin and reducing its monthly rental
payments. The unguaranteed residual values agctointhe Company was retained. The
restructuring resulted in the recognition of a gam accretion amounting to B849,890 and is
reported under “Other income” in the 2010 consaiidastatement of comprehensive income.

Future minimum lease receivable under this leassf ®ecember 31 are as follows:

2011 2010
Within one year P1,591,280 P1,591,280
After one year but not more than five years 3,747,773 5,339,053
Total minimum lease payments 5,339,053 6,930,333
Less unearned interest income 590,642 969,492
Present value of future minimum lease payments 4,748,411 5,960,841
Less current portion 1,300,075 1,212,430
Noncurrent portion P3,448,336 P4,748,411

Collection of lease receivable amounted to B1Z280 and B 1,775,466 in 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Present value of lease receivable as of Decenibisras follows:

2011 2010
Within one year P1,300,075 P1,212,430
After one year but not more than five years 3,448,336 4,748,411
Total minimum lease payments 4,748,411 5,960,841
Less current portion 1,300,075 1,212,430

Present value of future minimum lease payments P3,448,336 P4,748,411

Unearned interest income as of December 31, 20l 2010 amounted to B 590,642 and
R 969,492, respectively. Related interest incomeowmted to B 378,850, B 403,887 and
B465,251 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Difference between the original lease agreementsgnt value of minimum lease payments at
the date of lease inception against the carryinigevaf the finance lease asset resulted in a
deferred revenue on finance lease amounting t636/53, which is to be amortized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Theedlaeferred revenue amounted to B1,277,398 and
P1,866,965 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, auitfent portion amounting to B589,567 in
2011 and 2010, and noncurrent portion amounting®th277,398 and B 1,866,965 as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Amditimaof deferred revenue amounted to
B589,567, B709,665 and B1,310,151, in 2011, 2a8d®009, respectively.



Operating Lease as Lessee

a. PSC has various lease agreements with third padlasng to its store operations. Certain
agreements provide for the payment of rentals basedarious schemes such as an agreed
percentage of net sales for the month and fixedtinhprate.

Rental expense related to these lease agreemenptmted to B375,908,146, B312,975,325
and B295,747,766 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respdctiv Of the total rent expense, B
2,019,210 in 2011, B1,902,221 in 2010 and B6@3i8R009 pertains to contingent rent of
some stores based on percentage ranging from 1®b9%.0% of merchandise sales.
Amortization of deferred lease amounted to B1,589,R324,200 and R385,024 in 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively.

The approximate annual minimum rental paymentsS Bnder its existing lease agreements
as of December 31 are as follows:

2011 2010
Within one year B52,930,899 P48,966,221
After one year but not more than five years 114,077,970 93,993,928
More than five years - 3,131,450

P167,008,869 P146,091,599

b. CDI entered into a 15-year operating leaseraohfor the lease of its warehouse effective
November 1, 2005. The lease is subject to an &smalrate of 7.0% after every two years
starting on the third year of the lease.

Rent expense related to this lease agreementrdetbtio B22,925,240 in 2011, 2010 and
2009. Amortization of deferred lease amountedt®$0,500 in 2011, 2010 and 2009.

The approximate annual minimum rental paymentSF under its existing lease contract as
of December 31 are as follows:

2011 2010
Within one year P31,879,766 P21,058,664
After one year but not more than five years 138,038,344 92,747,776
More than five years 152,413,780 130,516,307
B
322,331,890 B244,322,747

The Company also has other various short-term atipgr leases pertaining to rental of
warehouse fixtures and equipments. Related repgrese amounted to B994,083, B2,448,678
and B2,397,929 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respegtivel

Operating Lease as Lessor

The Group has various sublease agreements witth plairties which provide for lease rentals

based on an agreed fixed monthly rate or as agneed by the parties. Rental income related to
these sublease agreements amounted to B44,14B%B361,84 and B52,265,323 in 2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively.



27.Income Tax

a. The components of the Group’s provision for incdmeare as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Current:
Regular corporate income tax®161,398,364 B124,265,727 P80,682,849
Final tax on interest

income 586,624 693,335 627,617
161,984,988 124,959,062 81,310,466
Deferred 165,174 3,796,610 (6,270,068)
B162,150,162 B128,755,672 B75,040,398

b. The components of the Group’s net deferred incaxessets are as follows:

2011
PSC CDI SSHI Total
Deferred income tax assets:
Net retirement obligations  B17,606,581 B1,951,234 B- P19,557,815
Accrued rent 7,951,803 6,227,340 - 14,179,143
Unamortized discount on
refundable deposit 4,683,505 1,860,674 - 6,544,179
Allowance for impairment on
receivables 2,231,545 - - 2,231,545
Provision for litigation losses 2,119,887 - - 2,119,887
Unamortized past service cost 1,766,126 35,681 - 1,801,807
Deferred revenue on
exclusivity
agreement 959,822 - - 959,822
Unearned income 243,731 - - 243,731
Unamortized discount on
receivable 79,102 - - 79,102
Unrealized foreign exchange
loss 205 — — 205
37,642,307 10,074,929 — 47,717,236
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Deferred lease expense 3,500,191 1,807,512 - 5,307,703
Unamortized discount on
purchase of
refundable
deposit 343,393 - - 343,393
Unamortized capitalized
interest 3,937 - - 3,937
Unrealized foreign exchange
gain - 15,145 - 15,145
Revaluation increment in land — — 1,384,241 1,384,241
3,847,521 1,822,657 1,384,241 7,054,419
Net deferred income tax assets
(liability) P33,794,786 B8,252,272 (P1,384,241) P40,662,817




2010

PSC CDI SSHI Total
Deferred income tax assets:
Accrued rent B12,040,725 PB5,667,367 B- B17,708,092
Net retirement obligations 15,542,890 1,693,184 - 17,236,074
Unamortized discount on
refundable deposit 4,675,697 - - 4,675,697
Provision for litigation losses 2,119,887 - - 2,119,887
Allowance for impairment on
receivables 1,088,248 - - 1,088,248
Deferred revenue on
exclusivity
agreement 1,540,179 - - 1,540,179
Unamortized past service cost 1,994,721 42,280 - 2,037,001
Unamortized discount on
receivable 135,081 - - 135,081
Unrealized foreign exchange
loss 113,670 - - 113,670
39,251,098 7,402,831 - 46,653,929
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Deferred lease expense 3,556,790 - - 3,556,790
Unamortized capitalized
interest 503,359 - - 503,359
Unamortized discount on
purchase of
refundable
deposit 381,548 - - 381,548
Revaluation increment in land — — 1,384,241 1,384,241
4,441,697 - 1,384,241 5,825,938
Net deferred income tax assets
(liability) P34,809,401 PB7,402,831 (P1,384,241) B40,827,991

The reconciliation of the provision for incona icomputed at the statutory income tax rate to
provision for income tax shown in the consolidattdtements of comprehensive income
follow:

2011 2010 2009

Provision for income tax
computed at statutory income
tax rate B155,509,791 P121,690,776 P69,249,315
Adjustments for:
Nondeductible expenses:
Inventory losses 5,972,026 4,397,733 3,353,737
Interest expense and others 955,165 3,114,649 1,662,459
Tax effect of rate difference
between final tax and
statutory tax rate on bank

interest income (286,820) (386,196) (313,809)

Nontaxable other income - (61,290) (112,855)

Loss from typhoon - - 985,551

Donation expense - - 216,000
P162,150,162 P128,755,672 B75,040,398

RA 9504, effective on July 7, 2008 allows availmehbptional standard deductions (OSD).
Corporations, except for nonresident foreign campons, may now elect to claim standard
deduction in an amount not exceeding 40% of theisgiincome. The Group did not avail of
the OSD for the computation of its taxable incom@011, 2010 and 2009.



28. Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share

2011 2010 2009
a.
Net income =B56,342,989 P276,880,248 P155,790,651
b. Weighted average number
of shares issued 347,329,216 347,329,216 347,329,216
C.
Less weighted average number of
shares held in treasury 686,250 686,250 686,250
d. Weighted average number of shares
outstandingb-c) 346,642,966 346,642,966 346,642,966
e.
Basic/diluted earnings per shdeéd) B1.03 B0.80 B0.45

The Group does not have potentially dilutive comrsbares as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009. Thus, the basic earnings per share is equiaétdiluted earnings per share as of those dates.

The Group’s outstanding common shares increased 302,114,918 to 347,329,216 as a result of
stock dividend issuance equivalent to 15% of thistanding common shares of the Company of
301,428,666 shares approved on July 21, 2011 (s¢e N7). Therefore, the calculation of
basic/diluted earnings per share for all perioégs@nted has been adjusted retrospectively.

29. Financial Instruments

The following tables summarize the carrying vadunel fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities per class as of Decenbikr

2011 2010
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and in banks B394,696,749 B 394,696,749 B322,975,839 B322,975,839
Cash equivalents - - 35,753,695 35,753,695
394,696,749 394,696,749 358,729,534 358,729,534
Short-term investments 10,409,907 10,409,907 10,141,555 10,141,555
Receivables:
Suppliers 97,257,076 97,257,076 58,434,686 58,434,686
Franchisee 89,638,852 89,638,852 40,871,647 40,871,647
Store operators 15,683,186 15,683,186 9,718,957 9,718,957
Employees 15,407,124 15,407,124 10,321,643 10,321,643
Rent* 7,068,009 7,068,009 5,925,582 5,925,582
Notes 1,328,983 1,328,983 728,097 728,097
Current portion of lease receivable 1,300,075 1,563,950 1,212,430 1,363,599
Insurance claims 319,208 319,208 10,986,094 10,986,094
Due from PFI 173,945 173,945 888,425 888,425
Deposits — — 1,009,864 1,009,864
Others 11,112,829 11,112,829 18,461,210 18,461,210
239,289,287 239,553,162 158,558,635 158,709,804
Deposits:
Utilities 29,267,868 29,267,868 23,969,222 23,969,222
Refundable 26,864,928 27,301,992 11,805,629 15,894,383
Others 4,527,970 4,527,970 3,273,451 3,273,451
60,660,766 61,097,830 39,048,302 43,137,056

(Forward)



2011 2010
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Other noncurrent assettease receivable (r
of current portion) P3,448,336 B3,439,941 B4,748,411 B4,915,991
Total Loans and Receivables 708,505,045 709,197,589 571,226,437 575,633,940
AFS Financial Assets — 1,320,575 1,320,575

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

P708,505,045

P709,197,589

B572,547,012

B576,954,515

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Other Financial Liabilities

Bank loans P374,666,667 P374,666,667 B320,000,000 B320,000,000

Accounts payable and accrued expenses:
Trade payable 1,066,740,769 1,066,740,769 905,064,399 905,064,399
Utilities 38,219,462 38,219,462 31,187,454 31,187,454
Employee benefits 23,954,117 23,954,117 34,009,286 34,009,286
Advertising and promotion 16,054,548 16,054,548 18,831,169 18,831,169
Qutsourced services 12,461,025 12,461,025 8,042,071 8,042,071
Security services 3,054,419 3,054,419 3,610,705 3,610,705
Bank charges 2,278,700 2,278,700 2,181,700 2,181,700
Interest 1,174,528 1,174,528 874,892 874,892
Others** 32,734,076 32,734,076 15,508,753 15,508,753

1,196,671,644 1,196,671,644 1,019,310,429 1,019,310,429

Other current liabilities:

Non-trade accounts payable 188,758,358 188,758,358 164,122,488 164,122,488
Service fees payable 19,370,472 19,370,472 15,694,145 15,694,145
Retention payable 18,688,531 18,688,531 18,459,378 18,459,378
Royalty 10,353,333 10,353,333 8,465,255 8,465,255
Others 12,700,219 12,700,219 11,916,276 11,916,276
249,870,913 249,870,913 218,657,542 218,657,542

Deposit payable 171,457,833 171,457,833 142,862,137 142,862,137
Cumulative redeemable preferred shares 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000
177,457,833 177,457,833 148,862,137 148,862,137

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES P1,998,667,057 P1,998 ,667,057 P1,706,830,108 P1,706,830,108

*Includes short-term refundable deposits amountm&216,000 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 etgely, reported under
“Prepayments and other current assets” in the cdidsted balance sheet.
**Excludes withholding taxes payable amountingBh0@0 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Fair Value Information

Current Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Due to the short-term nature of the related tretitsas, the fair value of cash and cash equivalents
receivables (except for lease receivables), aceopayable and accrued expenses and other
current liabilities approximates their carrying ambas of balance sheet date.

Lease Receivables

The fair value of lease receivable is determinedlibgounting the sum of future cash flows using
the prevailing market rates for instruments withnikir maturities as of December 31, 2011 and
2010, which is 3.80% and 4.64%, respectively.

Utility and Other Deposits
The fair value of utility and other deposits appnaates its carrying value as it earns interest
based on repriced market conditions.

Refundable Deposits
The fair value of deposits is determined by distimg the sum of future cash flows using the
prevailing market rates for instruments with simitaaturities as of December 31, 2011 and 2010
ranging from 1.66% to 5.30% and 2.74% to 6.09%peetvely.

AFS Financial Assets
The fair value of unquoted AFS financial assetsasreasonably determinable, thus, balances are

presented at cost.



Bank Loans and Deposit Payables
The carrying value approximates fair value becafseecent and monthly repricing of related
interest based on market conditions.

Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares

The carrying value approximates fair value becaaseesponding dividends on these shares that
are charged as interest expense in profit or losshased on recent treasury bill rates repriced
annually at year end.

Fair Value Hierarchy
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group hdsancial instruments measured at fair value.

30.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The main risks arising from the Group’s financiastruments are credit risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk. B®@D reviews and approves policies for
managing each of these risks. The BOD also cresgpdrate board-level entity, which is the
Audit Committee, with explicit authority and respdrility in managing and monitoring risks.
The Audit Committee, which ensures the integrityiriernal control activities throughout the
Group, develops, oversees, checks and pre-appfioegial management functions and systems
in the areas of credit, market, liquidity, operatif) legal and other risks of the Group, and crisis
management. The Internal Audit Department and tttergal Auditor directly report to the Audit
Committee regarding the direction, scope and caoatitin of audit and any related activities.
Listed below are the summarized risk identifieciy BOD.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a finahd@hstrument will cause a financial loss to thieeut
party by failing to discharge an obligation. Tleeeivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis with the result that the Group’s exposurienfmairment is managed to a not significant level.
The Group deals only with counterparty duly appcblg the BOD.

The following tables provide information regardithg maximum credit risk exposure of the
Group as of December 31.:

2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on
hand):
Cash in bank P277,117,736 B248,539,958
Cash equivalents — 35,753,695
277,117,736 284,293,653
Short-term investments 10,409,907 10,141,555
Receivables:
Suppliers 99,035,030 58,816,472
Franchisee 89,638,852 40,871,647
Store operators 15,683,186 9,718,957
Employees 15,407,124 10,321,643
Rent* 7,068,009 5,925,582
Notes 1,328,983 728,097
Current portion of lease receivables 1,300,075 1,212,430
Insurance claims 319,208 10,986,094
(Forward)
2011 2010
Due from PFI R173,945 B888,425



Deposits - 1,009,864
Others 16,773,358 21,706,916
246,727,770 162,186,127
Deposits:

Utilities 29,267,868 23,969,222
Refundable 26,864,928 11,805,629
Others 4,527,970 3,273,451
60,660,766 39,048,302

Other noncurrent assets:
Lease receivables - net of current portion 3,448,336 4,748,411
AFS financial assets - 1,320,575
3,448,336 6,068,986

P598,364,515 P501,738,623

*Includes short-term refundable deposits amountm§216,000 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 tedarnder
“Prepayments and other current assets” in the cdidsted balance sheet.

The following tables provide information regarditfie credit risk exposure of the Group by
classifying assets according to the Group’s cnediihgs of debtors:

2011
Neither Past Due nor Impaired
Standard Past Due
High Grade Grade  Or Impaired Total

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in bank B277,117,736 B— B- P277,117,736
Short-term investments 10,409,907 — — 10,409,907
Receivables
Suppliers - 14,789,976 84,245,054 99,035,030
Franchisee - 89,638,852 - 89,638,852
Store operators - 15,683,186 - 15,683,186
Employees 15,407,124 15,407,124
Rent - 7,068,009 - 7,068,009
Notes - 1,328,983 - 1,328,983
Current portion of lease receivables - 1,300,075 - 1,300,075
Insurance claims - 319,208 - 319,208
Due from PFI - 173,945 - 173,945
Others 11,112,829 5,660,529 16,773,358

— 156,822,187 89,905,583 246,727,770
Deposits
Utilities - 29,267,868 - 29,267,868
Refundable - 26,864,928 - 26,864,928
Others — 4,527,970 — 4,527,970

— 60,660,766 — 60,660,766
Other noncurrent assets
Lease receivables - net of current portion 3,448,336 — 3,448,336

P287,527,643

P220,931,289

P89,905,583598,364,515




2010

Neither Past Due nor Impaired

Standard Past Due Or
High Grade Grade Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in bank B248,539,958 B— B- P248,539,958
Cash equivalents 35,753,695 — — 35,753,695
284,293,653 — — 284,293,653
Short-term investments 10,141,555 - - 10,141,555
Receivables
Suppliers - 13,814,889 45,001,583 58,816,472
Franchisee - 40,871,647 - 40,871,647
Insurance claims - 10,986,094 - 10,986,094
Employees - 9,929,725 391,918 10,321,643
Store operators - 9,718,957 - 9,718,957
Rent - 5,925,582 - 5,925,582
Current portion of lease  receivables - 1,212,430 - 1,212,430
Deposits - - 1,009,864 1,009,864
Due from PFI - 888,425 - 888,425
Notes - 728,097 - 728,097
Others — 19,862,992 1,843,924 21,706,916
- 113,938,838 48,247,289 162,186,127
Deposits
Utilities - 23,969,222 - 23,969,222
Refundable - 11,805,629 - 11,805,629
Others — 3,273,451 - 3,273,451
— 39,048,302 — 39,048,302
Other noncurrent assets
Lease receivables - net of current portion - 4,748,411 - 4,748,411
AFS financial assets - 1,320,575 - 1,320,575
— 6,068,986 - 6,068,986
P294,435,208 R159,056,126 B48,247,289 B505738,

The Group uses the following criteria to rate crediality:

Class
High Grade

Description

Financial assets that have a recogiazedyn or local
third party rating or instruments which carry
guaranty/collateral.

Standard Grade Financial assets of companies dlvatthe apparent

ability to satisfy its obligations in full.
The credit qualities of the financial assets wartednined as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as haglegiince these are deposited or transacted with
reputable banks which have low probability of insoicy.

Receivables, deposits and other noncurrent assetslassified as standard grade since these
pertain to receivables considered as unsecuredtfrivchparties with good paying habits.



The following tables provide the analysis of finmhassets that are past due but not impaired and

past due and impaired:

2011

Aging analysis of financial assets past due but n@npaired

Past due and

31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days > 90 days Total impaired Total
Receivables:
Suppliers B3,565,821 P3,058,308 B75,842,971 2,287,100 B1,777,954 B84,245,054
Others - - - - 5,660,529 5,660,529
B3,565,821 B3,058,308 B75,842,971 B82,467,100 =7,438,483 B89,905,583
2010
Aging analysis of financial assets past due buimpaired Past due and
31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days > 90 days Total impaired Total
Receivables:
Suppliers R7,533,090 B9,420,501 P27,666,206 4,629,797 P381,786 P45,001,583
Others — — — — 3,245,706 3,245,706
P7,533,090 P9,420,501 P27,666,206 P44,619,797 =3,62P,492 P48,247,289

Receivables from suppliers are noninterest-beanmbare generally on 30-day to 90-day terms.

There are no significant concentrations of cradk within the Group.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will enaater difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial instruments. The Group seeks to aggnits liquidity profile to be able to finance

its capital expenditures and service its maturielgtsl. To cover for its financing requirements, the
Group intends to use internally generated fundssaites of certain assets.

As part of its liquidity risk management prograrne tGroup regularly evaluates projected and
actual cash flow information and continuously assesconditions in the financial markets for
opportunities to pursue fund raising initiativeShese initiatives may include drawing of loans
from the approved credit line intended for workicapital and capital expenditures purposes and

equity market issues.

The tables below summarize the maturity profiléhef financial assets of the Group:

2011
More than More than
Three months three months one year More than
or less to one year to five years five years Total

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash B394,696,749 B- B- BP- B394,696,749
Short-term investments - 10,409,907 - - 10,409,907
Receivables
Suppliers 97,257,076 - - - 97,257,076
Franchisee 89,638,852 - - - 89,638,852
Store operators 15,683,186 - - - 15,683,186
Employees 15,407,124 - - - 15,407,124
Rent 7,068,009 - - - 7,068,009
Current portion of lease receivables 1,300,075 - - - 1,300,075
Notes 1,328,983 - - - 1,328,983
Insurance claims - 319,208 - - 319,208
Due from PFI - 173,945 - - 173,945
Others 11,112,829 - - - 11,112,829

238,796,134 493,153 - - 239,289,287
Deposits
Utilities - - 29,267,868 - 29,267,868
Refundable - - 26,864,928 - 26,864,928
(Forward)

2011




More than More than
Three months three months one year More than
or less to one year to five years five years Total
Others B- B- B4,527,970 P- R4,527,970
- - 60,660,766 - 60,660,766
Other noncurrent assets
Lease receivables - net of current portion - - 3,448,336 - 3,448,336
P633,492,883 B10,903,060 P64,109,102 B- PTE®ES5
2010
More than More than
Three months three months one year More than
or less to one year to five years five years Total
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash B322,975,839 B- B- B- BR322,975,839
Cash equivalents 35,753,695 - - - 35,753,695
358,729,534 - - - 358,729,534
Short-term investments - 10,141,555 - - 10,141,555
Receivables
Suppliers 45,001,583 13,433,103 - - 58,434,686
Franchisee 40,871,647 - - - 40,871,647
Insurance claims - 10,986,094 - - 10,986,094
Employees 10,321,643 - - - 10,321,643
Store operators 9,718,957 - - - 9,718,957
Rent 5,925,582 - - - 5,925,582
Current portion of lease receivables 295,221 9,20 - - 1,212,430
Deposits 1,009,864 - - - 1,009,864
Due from PFI - 888,425 - - 888,425
Notes 728,097 - - - 728,097
Others 1,197,103 17,264,107 - - 18,461,210
115,069,697 43,488,938 - - 158,558,635
Deposits
Utilities - - 23,969,222 - 23,969,222
Refundable - - 11,805,629 - 11,805,629
Others - - 3,273,451 - 3,273,451
- - 39,048,302 - 39,048,302
Other noncurrent assets
Lease receivables - net of current portion - - a4am - 4,748,411
AFS financial assets - - - 1,320,575 1,320,575
- - 4,748,411 1,320,575 6,068,986
B473,799,231 B53,630,493 B43,796,713 B1,320,9%72,547,012

The tables below summarize the maturity profiléhef financial liabilities of the Group based on
remaining undiscounted contractual obligations:

2011
More than
Three months  three months More than
or less to one year one year Total
Bank loans P293,389,375 P83,335,278 B— B376,724,653

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Trade payable

Utilities

Employee benefits
Advertising and promotion
Outsourced services
Security services

Bank charges

(Forward)

1,066,740,769 - -

38,219,462 - -
23,954,117 - -
16,054,548 - -
12,461,025 - -
3,054,419 - -
2,278,700 - -

1,066,740,769
38,219,462
23,954,117
16,054,548
12,461,025

3,054,419
2,278,700



2011

More than
Three months  three months More than
or less to one year one year Total
Interest P1,174,528 B- B- P1,174,528
Others 32,736,076 — — 32,736,076
1,196,673,644 — — 1,196,673,644
Other current liabilities
Non-trade accounts payable 23,253,171 165,505,187 - 188,758,358
Service fees payable - 19,370,472 - 19,370,472
Retention payable - 18,688,531 - 18,688,531
Royalty 10,353,333 - - 10,353,333
Others — 12,700,219 — 12,700,219
33,606,504 216,264,409 — 249,870,913
Cumulative redeemable preferred shares 6,000,000 — — 6,000,000
B1,529,669,523 PB299,599,687 B- P1,829,269,210
2010
More than
Three months  three months More than
or less to one year one year Total
Bank loans P170,821,194 PB152,479,267 B- P323,300,461
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Trade payable 905,064,399 - - 905,064,399
Employee benefits 34,009,286 - - 34,009,286
Utilities 31,187,454 - - 31,187,454
Advertising and promotion 18,831,169 - - 18,831,169
Outsourced services 8,042,071 - - 8,042,071
Security services 3,610,705 - - 3,610,705
Bank charges 2,181,700 - - 2,181,700
Interest 874,892 - - 874,892
Others 15,508,753 — — 15,508,753
1,019,310,429 — — 1,019,310,429
Other current liabilities
Non-trade accounts payable 13,657,982 150,464,506 - 164,122,488
Retention payable - 18,459,378 - 18,459,378
Service fees payable - 15,694,145 - 15,694,145
Royalty 8,465,255 - - 8,465,255
Others — 11,916,276 — 11,916,276
22,123,237 196,534,305 — 218,657,542
Cumulative redeemable preferred shares 6,000,000 — — 6,000,000
B1,218,254,860 B349,013,572 B- P1,567,268,432

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vatrefuture cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market interess.rafThe Group’s fair value and cash flows
interest rate risk mainly arise from bank loanshiibating interest rates. The Group is expecting
to substantially reduce the level of bank loansr divee. Internally generated funds coming from
its cash generating units and from its franchidouginess will be used to pay off outstanding
debts and consequently reduce the interest ratesarp.

The maturity profile of financial instruments tlaae exposed to interest rate risk are as follows:

2011 2010
Due in less than one year B374,666,667 PB320,000,000
Rate 3.50%-4.25% 4.20%-5.20%




Interest of financial instruments classified asfiog rate is repriced at intervals of 30 days.e Th
other financial instruments of the Group that amt mcluded in the above tables are
noninterest-bearing and are therefore not subjeicttérest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivityatoeasonably possible change in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Greuincome before income tax (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings):

2011 2010
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
Decrease in Income Before Decrease in Income Before
Basis Points Income Tax Basis Points Income Tax
Bank loans - floating interest rate +100 (3,746,667) +100 (3,200,000)
-100 3,746,667 -100 3,200,000

There is no other impact on the Group’s equity othan those already affecting profit or loss.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings qitaharising from changes in foreign exchage
rates. The Group’s foreign exchange exposure afisgs holding foreign currency denominated
rates.cash and cash equivalents, loans and retasvald merchandise sale to foreign entity. In
order to balance this exposure, the Group has saies denominated in foreign currency and
maintains a foreign currency accounts in a repatabmmercial bank. The Group does not enter
into derivatives to hedge the exposure. The Grooash and receivables denominated in foreign
currency and converted into Peso using the closxahange rates at the reporting dates are
summarized below.

2011 2010
Dollar Peso Dollar Peso
Cash $59,634 B2,614,355 $35,718 B1,565,877
Receivables 90,349 3,960,900

$149,983 P6,575,255 $35,718 P1,565,877

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the closing fanat currency exchange rate is P43.84.

The following table represents the impact on theupis income before income tax brought about
by a reasonably possible changes in Peso to Dedenange rate (holding all other variables
constant) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 usitilgkt financial reporting date:

Change in Effect on

Peso to Dollar Income before

Exchange Rate Income Tax

2011 Increase by 3.00% B197,258
Decrease by 3.00¢ (197,258)

2010 Increase by 1.00 16,049
Decrease by 1.00 (16,049)

There is no other effect on the Company’s equiyeothan those already affecting profit or loss.



31. Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital mamagat is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in ordeistipport its business and maximize shareholder
value.

In the light of changes in economic conditions, 8eoup manages dividend payments to
shareholders, pay-off existing debts, return chpitahareholders or issue new shares. The Group
mainly uses financing from local banks. The Groopsiders equity contributed by shareholders
as capital. The Group manages its capital strudiyrkeeping a net worth of between 30% and
50% in relation to its total assets. The Group& worth ratio is 40% and 38% as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. No adwmngre made in the objectives, policies and
processes during the year.

2011 2010
Capital stock B347,329,216 B302,114,918
Additional paid-in capital 293,525,037 293,525,037
Retained earnings 855,468,208 574,482,384
1,496,322,461 1,170,122,339
Less cost of shares held in treasury 2,923,246 2,923,246
P1,493,399,215 B1,167,199,093
Total assets B3,734,298,981 B3,093,173,359
Net worth 40% 38%

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group wiastalmeet its objective.

32. Significant Agreements

a. The Group has various store franchise agreemerits third parties for the operation of
certain stores. The agreement includes a onedramhise fee payment and an annual
7-Eleven charge for the franchisee, which is eqoa certain percentage of the franchised
store’s gross profit. Franchise fee amounted t&5E98,201, B 40,202,044 and
R32,828,051 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectiveig, franchise revenue for the 7-Eleven
charge amounted to R478,827,511, B402,620,63®2nd,987,091 in 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

b. The Group has service agreements with third pafteshe management and operation of
certain stores. In consideration thereof, theestqrerator is entitled to a service fee based on
a certain percentage of the store’s gross profit @perating expenses as stipulated in the
service agreement. Service fees included undesideuservices shown as part of “General
and administrative expenses” in profit or loss anted to B 174,464,102 in 2011,
R134,893,173 in 2010 and R109,601,229 in 2009.

c. On April 1, 2011, CDI has entered into a MemorandoivtAgreement (MOA) with TAIT
Marketing and Distribution Co., Ltd., a corporatiduly organized and existing under
the laws of the Republic of China (ROC) with privei office at Taiwan, ROC. The contract
indicates that CDI shall provide consumer goods uedlucts from Philippine Suppliers that
meet the needs and specifications of TAIT. Revefroem merchandise sold to TAIT
amounted to B11,974,766 in 2011 with associatetiaf@goods sold amounted to B9,986,582.



The Group has an agreement with its phone cardlisumgffective January 1, 2000. Under
the arrangement, the Group earns commission osdleeof phone cards based on a certain
percentage of net sales for the month and a fixeatinhy rate. Commission income
amounted to B37,236,539, B29,271,506 and BE2B313( 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Group has entered into an exclusivity agreemetit a Third Party Supplier in the
Philippines on October 1, 2007. Upon the effettiaf the agreement, all existing branches
of 7-Eleven shall exclusively carry the Third PaBypplier's products and 7-Eleven should
not carry any other similar or parallel produci®he agreement is for a period of three years
starting October 1, 2007 and shall continue indaaiod effect until December 31, 2010. In
June 2008, the Company received a total consideraif B11,741,071 in relation to the
agreement, to be amortized over three years.

On October 15, 2010, the said agreement was extefudeanother 3 years. The Company
received R29,000,000 as a result of the extension.

Income from exclusivity contract included as paft “Marketing support funds” under
“Marketing income” in the consolidated statementcofnprehensive income amounted to
B29,000,000 in 2011 and B3,913,690 in 2010 anf8.20

The Group has also entered into a 3-year exclysiiintract with a Third Party soda

manufacturer in the Philippines effective April B0fio March 2013. The contract indicates
that the Third Party soda manufacturer will exalaki supply all slurpee products of 7-

Eleven. The Group received a one-time signing baamasunting to B4,464,286 upon the
effectivity of the exclusivity supply contract antieed over three years. Income from

exclusivity contract included as part of “Marketisgpport funds” under “Marketing income”

in consolidated statement of comprehensive incomeuated to B1,488,095 and BR1,116,071
in 2011 and 2010, respectively. Deferred revensieofaDecember 31, 2011 and 2010
amounted to B1,860,119 and B3,348,214, resphctive

In 2010, the Group collected a signing bonus aniognto B2,232,143 from one of the
Group’s food suppliers for awarding half of the Gmamy's existing Hotdog Stock Keeping
Units (SKUs) to the food supplier for the next fiyears starting January 1, 2010. Income
from exclusivity contract included as part of “Mating support funds” under “Marketing
income” in profit or loss amounted to B446,42%kat2011 and 2010. Deferred revenue as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010 amounted to B1,339y28&1,785,715, respectively.

The Group has entered into a Memorandum of Agreefhd@A) with Chevron Philippines,
Inc. (CPI) on August 6, 2009, wherein CPI has grdrithe Group as authorized co-locator for
a full term of three-years to establish, operatel/@n franchise its 7-Eleven stores in
CPI service stations. Both parties have identi#l@dCPI service stations, wherein the Group
will give the Retailers of these service stationketter Offer to Franchise (LOF) 7-Eleven
stores. Upon acceptance of the Retailers of thE, ltkie Retailers will sign a Store Franchise
Agreement (SFA) with the Group. If LOF is not ot by one of the 22 original service
stations identified, that service station will beplaced with another mutually acceptable
service station site.



Upon signing of the MOA, CPI executes a Caltex Reigreement with each of the 25
service station Retailers, which shall have a falim of three years and which will be
co-terminus with the SFA.

The Company has 25 Retailers franchised storessaember 31, 2011 and 2010.

33. Segment Reporting

The Group considers the store operations as itg business segment based on its primary
business activity. Franchising, renting of projgsrand commissioning on bills payment services
are considered an integral part of the store oj&st

The products and services from which the storeaijmers derive its revenues from are as follows:

* Merchandise sales
* Franchise revenue

* Marketing income

* Rental income
 Commission income
* Interest income

The segment’s relevant financial information isaws:

2011 2010 2009

REVENUE

Revenue from merchandise sales B9,435,604,073 B7,612,243,056 B6,033,322,488

Franchise revenue 534,025,712 442,822,680 303,815,142
Marketing income 484,888,816 338,765,461 236,502,860
Rent income 44,143,593 37,361,844 52,265,323
Commission income 37,236,539 29,271,506 22,130,513
Interest income 5,864,713 5,355,769 4,839,945
Other income 101,235,280 78,278,268 35,685,902

10,642,998,726 8,544,098,584 6,688,562,173

EXPENSES
Cost of merchandise sales
General and administrative expenses:

7,091,496,699 5,585,270,478 4,371,715,990

Depreciation and amortization 380,954,262 294,893,483 203,905,718
Others 2,631,223,716 2,236,612,313 1,847,053,611
Interest expense 16,024,647 16,398,169 26,482,817
Other expenses 4,806,251 5,288,221 8,572,988
10,124,505,575 8,138,462,664 6,457,731,124

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 518,493,151 405,635,920 230,831,049
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 162,150,162 128,755,672 75,040,398

SEGMENT PROFIT P356,342,989

P276,880,248

P155,790,651

SEGMENT ASSETS P3,734,298,981

P3,093,173,359

P2,709,291,692

SEGMENT LIABILITIES P2,237,669,871

R1,922,744,371

P1,801,389,206

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE FOR

THE YEAR P717,091,736

P671,923,830

P362,393,990




34. Provisions andContingencies

The Group is a party to various litigations invaly, among others, employees suing for illegal
dismissal, back wages and damage claims, lessairsinly for lease payments for the unexpired
portion of the lease agreements in cases of pneittation of lease agreements, claims arising
from store operations and as co-respondents witfufaaturers on complaints with the Bureau of
Food and Drugs, specific performance and othet claims. All such cases are in the normal
course of business and are not deemed to be coedide material legal proceedings. Further,
these cases are either pending in courts or undézgp, the outcome of which are not presently
determinable. Management and its legal couns@\zethat the liability, if any, that may result
from the outcome of these litigations and claimB mot materially affect their financial position
or financial performance.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Companyphagisions amounting to B7,066,290
pertaining to probable loss on litigations.

The table below summarizes the movements in timp@ay’s provision as of December 31:

2011 2010
Beginning of the year R7,066,290 P12,578,122
Provisions during the year - 4,098,267
Payments during the year - (9,610,099)

P7,066,290 P7,066,290

35. Note to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

The principal non-cash transaction of the Groupeuriithancing activities pertains to the issuance
of stock dividends (see Note 17).
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NT AUDITORS’ REPORT
FMENTARY SCHEDULES

tockholders and the Board of Directors
ippine Seven Corporation

1 Floor. The Columbia Tower

igas Avenue, Mandaluyong City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of Philippine Seven Corporation (the Company) and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2011
and 2010 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011, included in this Form-
17-A, and have issued our report thereon dated February 10, 2012. Our audits were made for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The schedules listed
in the Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. -These schedules are presented for purposes of
complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011) and are not part of the basic
financial statements. Thes= schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the
information reguired to be st forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a

whaole.

SYCIPGORRES VELAYO & CO.

Julie Christine O. Mateo

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 93542

SEC Accreditation No. 0780-AR-1 (Group A),
February 2, 2012, valid until February 1, 2015

Tax ldentification No. 198-819-116

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-68-2009,
June 1, 2009, valid until May 31, 2012

PTR No. 3174818, January 2, 2012, Makati City

February 10, 2012



